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GENERAL INFORMATION

I. Parent

The Parent of the SECO/WARWICK Group is SECO/WARW/ISpdtka Akcyjna ofSwiebodzin. The
Company was registered on January 2nd 2007 byevotfua decision issued by the District Court for
Zielona Gora, VIII Commercial Division of the Natial Court Register, and entered in the Register of
Entrepreneurs of the National Court Register uhilerKRS 0000271014.

Name: SECO/WARWICK S.A.
Legal form: Joint-stock company (spétka akcyjna)
Registered

} ul. Sobieskiego 8, 66-20Wiebodzin, Poland
address:

Core business according to
the Polish Classification of
Business Activities (PKD):

28.21.Z Manufacture of ovens, furnaces and furiagcgers,

33.20.Z Installation of industrial machinery andignent,

28.29.Z Manufacture of other general-purpose magiin.e.c.,
28.24.7 Manufacture of power-driven hand tools,

28.99Z Manufacture of other special-purpose machine.c.,

Manufacture of machinery for textile, apparel arehther
production

Agents involved in the sale of machinery, industeiguipment,
ships and aircra

28.94.7

46.14.7

46,19,7 Agents involved in the sale of a varietgobds,

46.69.Z Wholesale of other machinery and equipment,

71.12.7 Engineering activities and related tecHraoasultancy,

72.11.Z Research and experimental developmentatadbinology.

National Court Register
(KRS) No. KRS 0000271014

Industry Identification

Number (REGON) 970011679

[I. Duration of the Group

SECO/WARWICK S.A. and other entities of the SECO/RIMXICK Group have been registered to
operate for an unlimited period of time, except 8#CO/WARWICK Retech Thermal Equipment
Manufacturing Tianjin Co. Ltd. established for heriod of 27 years.
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[ll. Presented periods

These consolidated financial statements contaia fibatthe period January 1st-December 31st 2012.
The comparative data is presented as at Decemise2811 in the case of the statement of financial

position, and for the period from January 1st 2@ilDecember 31st 2011 in the case of the statement
of comprehensive income, statement of cash floms séatement of changes in equity.

IV. Composition of SECO/WARWICK S.A.’s governing badies

MANAGEMENT BOARD

Composition of the
Management Board as at
December 31st 2011

Leszek Przybysz
Andrzej Zawistowski
Wojciech Modrzyk
Witold Klinowski
Jozef Olejnik

President of the Management Board
Vice-President of the Management Board
Vice-President of the Management Board
Member of the Management Board
Member of the Management Board

Composition of the
Management Board as at
December 31st 2012

Pawet Wyrzykowski
Wojciech Modrzyk
Witold Klinowski
Jozef Olejnik

President of the Management Board
Vice-President of the Management Board
Member of the Management Board
Member of the Management Board

Composition of the
Management Board as at
January 1st 2013

Pawet Wyrzykowski
Wojciech Modrzyk
Jarostaw Talerzak

President of the Management Board
Vice-President of the Management Board
Vice-President of the Management Board

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Composition of the Superviso

Board as at December 31st 2(

Jeffrey Boswell
Henryk Pilarski
rPiotr Kowalewski
Piotr Kula

Artur Rusiecki
Mariusz Czaplicki

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Boar
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board

[oX

Composition of the Superviso 9
Board as at December 31st 2(

Andrzej Zawistowski
Henryk Pilarski
ryeffrey Boswell
yames A. Goltz
Zbigniew Roga

Dr Gutmann Habig

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Boar
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board

[oX

Composition of the Superviso
Board as at January 1st 2013

Andrzej Zawistowski
Henryk Pilarski
Jeffrey Boswell
'Yames A. Goltz
Zbigniew Roga

Dr Gutmann Habig
Witold Klinowski

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Boar
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board

[®N

Changes in the composition of the Management Board

On January 12th 2012, in Current Report No. 02/2@i€ SECO/WARWICK Management Board
reported on appointment by the Supervisory BoamllioPawet Wyrzykowski to serve as President of
the Management Board as of February 1st 2012.
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On May 25th 2012, the SECO/WARWICK Management Boards notified of Mr Andrzej

Zawistowski's decision to resign as Vice-Presidamd Member of the SECO/WARWICK
Management Board. The resignation was due to Mrigtawski’'s plans to take the position of
Chairman of the SECO/WARWICK Supervisory Board. Seerent Report No. 14/2012.

On December 14th 2012, in Current Report No. 382@ie SECO/WARWICK Management Board
reported on Mr Witold Klinowski's resignation froitthe position of Member of the Company’s
Management Board. The resignation was due to Mrddiski's plans to take the position of Member
of the SECO/WARWICK Supervisory Board.

On December 14th 2012, in Current Report No. 382€ie SECO/WARWICK Management Board
reported on Mr Jozef Olejnik’s resignation from tpesition of Member of the Company’s
Management Board. Mr J6zef Olejnik cited his retieat age as the reason behind the resignation.

On December 14th 2012, in Current Report No. 3%2@ie SECO/WARWICK Management Board
reported on appointment by the Supervisory Boatdliodarostaw Talerzak to serve as Vice-President
of the Management Board as of January 1st 2013.

Changes in the composition of the Supervisory Board

On May 25th 2012, the SECO/WARWICK Management Boaad notified of Mr Artur Rusiecki's
decision to resign as Member of the SECO/WARWICK@&uisory Board, with effect as of May
17th 2012. The resignation was due to importardgel reasons. See Current Report No. 15/2012.

On May 28th 2012, the Annual General Meeting of SBEARWICK S.A. by virtue of Resolution
No. 40 appointed Mr Andrzej Zawistowski to serveMember of the Company’s Supervisory Board.
See Current Report No. 17/2012.

On May 28th 2012, the Annual General Meeting of SBEARWICK S.A. by virtue of Resolution
No. 34 appointed Mr James A. Goltz to serve as Menalb the Company’s Supervisory Board. See
Current Report No. 17/2012.

In Current Report No. 25/2012 of September 3rd 2@h@ SECO/WARWICK Management Board
reported on Mr Piotr Kula's resignation as Membértlee Company’s Supervisory Board. The
resignation followed from Mr Piotr Kula's appointmigas of September 1st 2012, as Deputy Dean of
the LO6d: University of Technology.

On November 28th 2012, the Extraordinary Generattiig of SECO/WARWICK S.A. by virtue of
Resolution No. 10 appointed Mr Witold Klinowski serve as Member of the Company’s Supervisory
Board as of January 1st 2013. See Current Repor3®&2012.

On November 28th 2012, the Extraordinary Generattiig of SECO/WARWICK S.A. by virtue of
Resolution No. 6 removed from office Mr Piotr Koewalski, who served as Member of the
Company’s Supervisory Board. See Current Report382012.

On November 28th 2012, the Extraordinary Generattiig of SECO/WARWICK S.A. by virtue of
Resolution No. 7 removed from office Mr Mariusz @leki, who served as Member of the
Company’s Supervisory Board. See Current Report382012.

On November 28th 2012, the Extraordinary Generattiig of SECO/WARWICK S.A. by virtue of
Resolution No. 8 appointed Mr Zbigniew Ragid serve as Member of the Company’s Supervisory
Board. See Current Report No. 36/2012.
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On November 28th 2012, the Extraordinary Generattiig of SECO/WARWICK S.A. by virtue of
Resolution No. 9 appointed Dr Gutmann Habig to seas Member of the Company’s Supervisory
Board. See Current Report No. 36/2012.

V. Auditors

PKF Audyt Sp. z 0. o.
ul. Orzycka 6, lok. 1B
02-695 Warsaw, Poland

VI. Significant shareholders of the parent

The table below lists the shareholders holding &@%rof the total vote at the General Meeting as at
December 31st 2012:

.| Number |
Jamoer | unershBl ofvores | % 10
9 at GM
SW Poland Holding B.V. (Netherlands) 4,119,50839 329/ | 4,119,50: 39.32v
Spruce Holding Limited Liability Company
(USA) 1,726,174 16.48% | 1,726,174 16.48%
Bleauhard Holdings LLC 904,20" | 8.63% 904,20° 8.63%
ING NN OFE 600.000 |  573% | 600.00¢ 5.73%
AMPLICO 577,47 5.51% 577,47 5.51%
OFE POLSAT S.A. 485,97« 4.64% 485,97 4.64%

The data presented in the table is based on raitdits received from the shareholders.

VII. Subsidiaries
SECO/WARWICK S.A. is the parent of the followingyet subsidiaries:

e SECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A. (before October 19th 2012ECO/WARWICK
ThermAL S.A),

« SECO/WARWICK Corporation,
* OO0 SECO/WARWICK Group Moscow,
* Retech Systems LLC,
» SECO/WARWICK Retech Thermal Equipment Manufactuiiimnjin Co., Ltd.,
¢  SECO/WARWICK GmbH,
* OO0 SCT (Solnechnogorsk) Russia,
«  SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH.
Other Group companies are:
« SECO/WARWICK of Delaware Inc.,
* Retech Tianjin Holdings LLC.



VIII. Associates.

« SECO/WARWICK Allied Pvt., Ltd., in which the Parenhblds a 50% interest conferring
the right to 50% of the total vote at the compamgseral meeting.

IX. Organisation of the Group:
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100% 100% 100% 50% 100%
L b h k4 L A
SECOMNARWICK Retech Systems 000 SECOAMARWICK SECOANVARWICK SECOMAARWICK SECOMARWICK
EUROPE S.A. LLC (USA) Group (Rosja) Corp. (USA) Allied Pyt Ltd. GrnbH (Miemcy)
50% 80% 100% 50% 1o0%
! 1_ [
SECOMYARWICK Retech .
Thermal Equipment 0% Retach Tianjin SECOMARWICK : SSEE%%Tgéng'EHK
Manufacturing Tianjin N Holdings LLC Delaware Inc. (US4) 000 SCT (Rosja) (Niemey)

Co., Ltd
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA TRANSLATED INTO THE EURO

The table below presents average EUR/PLN exchaatge quoted by the National Bank of Poland for
the periods covered by these financial statemerttdg the historical financial information:

Financial year Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Average exchange rate for the
period% J 4.1736 4.1401
Exchange rate effective for the last
day of the period 4.0882 4.4168

*) Average of the exchange rates effective foldseday of each month in the period.

Assets and equity and liabilities in the consobdatstatement of financial position have been

translatedusing the EUR/PLN exchange rates quoted by theohtBank of Poland for the last day

of the period.

ltems of the consolidated statement of comprehensigeome and consolidated statement of cash

flows have been translated using the exchange rateslataltuas the arithmetic means of the
EUR/PLN mid market rates quoted by the NationallBaihPoland as effective for the last day of each

month in the reporting period.

The table below presents key items of the cons@diatatement of financial position, statement of
comprehensive income and statement of cash flosedadied in the consolidated financial statements
and the comparable data, translated into the euro:

Key consolidated financial data

ltem 2012 2011 2012 2011

(PLN ‘000) (EUR ‘000)
Revenue 497,192 370,964 119,128 89,602
Cost of sales -378,142 -278,754  -90,603  -67,330
Operating profit/(loss) 38,689 29,025 9,270 7,011
Profit (loss) before tax 39,537 19,735 9,473 4,767
Profit (loss), net of tax 28,170 15,093 6,749 3,646
Net cash flows from operating activities 56,937, 26,552 13,642 6,413
Net cash flows from investing activities 9,725 -8,760 -2.330 2,116
Net cash flows from financing activities -11,864|  -12,499 -2,843 -3,019
Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
Total assets 426,613 390,364 104,352 88,382
Total liabilities 175,972 159,032 43,044 36,006
including current liabilities 142,645 128,250 34,892 29,037
Equity 250,642 231,332 61,309 52,375
Share capital 3,652 3,652 893 827
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In compliance with the requirements laid down ie Begulation of the Minister of Finance on current
and periodic information to be published by issuefssecurities, dated February 19th 2009, the
Management Board of the Parent represents thabtadoest of its knowledge these consolidated
financial statements and the comparative data heee prepared in compliance with the accounting
standards applicable to the Group and give an atzufair and clear view of the Group’s assets,
financial standing and financial performance.

These consolidated financial statements have beepaped in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) endorsedth®y EU, and their scope is compliant with the
requirements set forth in the Regulation of theidar of Finance on current and periodic infornmatio
to be published by issuers of securities, dateduaelp 19th 2009 (Dz. U. of 2009, No. 33, item 259).
These financial statements cover the period fromude 1st to December 31st 2012 and a
comparative period from January 1st to December Z1EL.

The Management Board represents that the auditdhesfe consolidated financial statements was
appointed in compliance with the applicable laws] #hat both the auditing firm and the qualified
auditors who performed the audit met the conditicetuired to issue an impartial and independent
auditor's opinion, in accordance with the appliegtiovisions of Polish law. In line with the corpte
governance principles adopted by the ManagementrdBathe auditor was appointed by the
Company’s Supervisory Board by virtue of Resolutddo. 11/2011 on appointment of the auditor.
The Supervisory Board appointed the auditor wita degard for the impartiality and objectivity okth
selection itself as well as of the performancehefduditor’s tasks.

Date: April 26th 2013
Pawel Wyrzykowski Wojciech Modrzyk Jarostaw Taldeza

Vice-President of the Vice-President of the

President of the Management Board Management Board Management Board

10
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THE SECO/WARWICK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD

JANUARY 1ST-DECEMBER 31ST 2012 PREPARED IN ACCORDAH
WITH INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

11



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  (PLN '000)
Assets as at as at
Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 159,131 160,853
Property, plant and equipment 10 49,769 52,979
Investment property 12 409 422
Goodwill 13 60,720 65,116
Intangible assets 11 16,462 14,091
Investments in associates 15 19,077 18,462
Financial assets available for sale 3 3
Non-current receivables 18 2113
Loans and receivables 13
Deferred tax assets 6 10,565 9,780
CURRENT ASSETS 263,775 225,347
Inventories 16 28,349 26,034
Trade receivables 18 72,235 107,077
Income tax assets 18 634 1,311
Other current receivables 18 16,762 11,642
Accruals and deferred income 20 2,840 2,171
Financial assets at fair value through profit_L9
or loss 4,028 10
Loans and receivables 19 8
Cash and cash equivalents 21 55,556 20,285
Contract settlement 17 83,362 56,817
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 7 3,708 4,164
TOTAL ASSETS 426,613 390,364

12



. . as at as at
Sguiey el [Elhiize Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
EQUITY 250,642 231,332
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 249,489 231,540
Share capital 22 3,652 3,652
Statutory reserve funds 22 189,136 177,662
Retained earnings/(deficit) 23 56,701 50,226
Non-controlling interests 1,153 -208
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 33,326 30,782
Borrowings and other debt instruments 24 3,100 5,568
Financial liabilities 24 267 113
Other non-current liabilities 24 26
Deferred tax liabilities 6 19,010 15,654
Provision for retirement and similar benefits 27 6,408 4,896
Accruals and deferred income 28 4,515 4,552
CURRENT LIABILITIES 142,645 128,250
Borrowings and other debt instruments 24 17,620 22555
Financial liabilities 24 867 7.342
Trade payables 26 32,459 26,353
Income tax payable 26 5,431
Taxes, customs duties and social security payable26 1,550 1,806
Other current liabilities 26 5,234 6,007
Provision for retirement and similar benefits 27 6,446 5,088
Other provisions 27 5,569 4,490
Accruals and deferred income 28 67,469 54,608
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 426,613 390,364
Date: April 26th 2013
Prepared by. Pawel Wyrzykowski Wojciech Modrzyk Jarostaw Taldeza

Piotr Walasek
President of the Management Vice-President of the  Vice-President of the
Board Management Board Management Board

13
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Total comprehensive income

Date: April 26th 2013
Prepared by:
Piotr Walasek

President of the Management Board

Pawel Wyrzykowski

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (PLN '000)
for the period el th
Jan 1-Dec 31 3 perio
2012 an 1-Dec 31
2011
Revenue, including: 1,2 497,192 370,964
Revenue from sale of finished goods 484,683 368,612
Revenue from sale of merchandise and materials 12,509 2,352
Cost of sales, including: 2,3 -378,142 -278,754
Finished goods sold -368,306 -277,064
Merchandise and materials sold -9,836 -1,690
Gross profit/(loss) 119,050 92,210
Other income 4 2,982 1,866
Distribution costs 2,3 -25,203 -20,107
Administrative expenses 2,3 -54,866 -42,509
Other expenses 4 -3,275 -2,434
Operating profit/(loss) 38,689 29,025
Gain (loss) on accounting for obtaining control
Gain (loss) on disposal / result related to lossauitrol
; " 0 -1,161
over subordinated entities
Finance income 5 8,267 466
Finance costs 5 -8,541 -9,791
Share of net profit (loss) of associates 1,122 1,196
Profit (loss) before tax 39,5637 19,735
Actual tax expense 6 -11,674 -4,936
Net profit (loss) from continuing operations 27,863 14,799
Profit/(loss) on discontinued operations
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling inésts -307 -294
Net profit/(loss) for financial year 28,170 15,093
Earnings per share (PLN) 8 2,69 1,44
Weighted average number of shares as at 8 10,476,210 10,476,210
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Valuation of cash flow hedging derivatives 3,114 -1,142
Exchange differences on translation of foreign apens -12,121 11,135
Actuarial gains/(losses) on a defined benefit eatient plan 305 -1,487
Income tax relating to other comprehensive income -592 781
Other comprehensive income, net -9,294 9,287

18,876 24,380

Wojciech Modrzyk

Jarostaw Taldeza

Vice-President of the Vice-President of the
Management Board Management Board

14
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (PLN '000)
for the for the
period Jan period Jan
1-Dec 31 1-Dec 31

2012 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Pre-tax profit/(loss) 30 39,537 19,735
Total adjustments: 20,861 12,540
Share of net profit of associates 1,122 -1,196
Depreciation and amortisation 3 7,291 6,273
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) -1,954 1,880
Interest and profit distributions (dividends) 1,359 1,368
Profit/(loss) on investing activities 1,143 2,166
Balance sheet valuation of derivative instruments -8,544 6,532
Change in provisions 5,011 2,550
Change in inventories -1,068 -3,820
Change in receivables 24,307 -39,568
Change in current liabilities (other than finahdebilities) 6,953 738
Change in accruals and deferrals -12,829 35,653
Other adjustments 314 -38
Cash from operating activities 60.398 32,275
Income tax (paid)/refunded -3,461 5,722
Net cash flows from operating activities 56,937 26,552
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash provided by investing activities 1,305 565
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets angepty plant and
equipment 797 287
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets 508
Other inflows from financial assets 5
Cash paid in connection with derivative instrunsent 273
Cash used in investing activities 11,029 9,326
Investments in intangible assets, property, plard aquipment,
and investment property 7,923 7,019
Acquisition of related entities 2,264 478
Acquisition of financial assets 25
Cash attributable to entities the Group no lorgertrols 508

15



Cash paid in connection with derivative instrunsent 818 1,320
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Net cash flows from investing activities 9,724 -8,760

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash provided by financing activities 10,778 10,987
Net proceeds from issue of shares or other equgifriiments and
equity contributions 643
Borrowings and other debt instruments 10,135 10,987
Cash used in financing activities 22,642 23,486
Dividends and other distributions to owners 1,048
Repayment of loans and borrowings 20,810 20,861
Decrease in finance lease liabilities 433 297
Interest paid 1,398 1,280
Net cash flows from financing activities -11,864 -12,499
Total net cash flow 35,347 5,293
Balance-sheet change in cash, including: 35,271 4,484
- exchange differences on cash and cash equigalent 75 -5
Cash at beginning of the period 20,239 14,946
Cash at end of the period, including: 55,586 20,239
- restricted cash 16,572

- cash relating to discontinued operations

Date: April 26th 2013
Prepared by: . o
Piotr Walasek Pawel Wyrzykowski Wojciech Modrzyk Jarostaw Taldeza

Vice-President of the  Vice-President of the

President of the Management Board Management Board Management Board
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (PLN ‘000)

Capital reserve Other

Equity attributabli

. Statutory . Exchange Retained . .
Share capiti . from revaluation components ¢ ) .. to non-controllinc Total equity
reserve fund: of derivatives equity differences earnings/(deficit interests
Twelve months ended Dec 31 2011
Equity as at Jan 1 2011 3,652 172,843 -17 35 1,155 30,335 208,002
Total comprehensive income for the twelve
months ended Dec 31 2011 925 11,135 923 9,287
_Distribution of profit (dividend -1,04¢ -1,04¢
_Share-based paymer -35 -35
_Transfer of 2010 earnings to 4,819 -4,819 0
_Net profit 15,093 15,093
Changes in equity of SECO/WARWICK Allied
) X 241 241
(India) not related to profit or loss
Equity attributable to norentrolling interests ii 208 208
SECO/WARWICK GmbH
Equity as at Dec 31 2011 3,652 177,66 -942 0 12,28¢ 38,87¢ -20¢8 231,332
Twelve months ended Dec 31 2012
Equity as at Jan 1 2012 3,652 177,662 (942) 0 12,289 38,879 -208 231,332
Total comprehensive income for the twelve
months ended Dec 31 2012 2,522 12,121 305 -9.294
_Correction of errors of previous ye -132 -132
_Transfer of 2011 earnings to 11,475 -11,475 0
_Net profit 28,170 28,170
Equity attributable to norentrolling interests ii
SECO/WARWICK Retech 113 543 656
Equity attributable to norentrolling interests ii
SECO/WARWICK GmbH -908 208 -700
Equity attributable to norentrolling interests ii
000 SCT 610 610
Equity as at Dec 31 2012 3,652 189,13t 1,58( 0 16¢€ 54,95! 1,152 250,642
Date: April 26th 2013
Eirc?t?a\llr\?eﬂa?;k Pawel Wyrzykowski Wojciech Modrzyk Jarostaw Taldrza
President of the Management Board Vice-President of the Management Board  Vice-President of the Management Board
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THE SECO/WARWICK GROUP

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINARIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARENDED DECEMBER 31ST 2012
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I. Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

These consolidated financial statements have besgaped in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the IF&fslorsed by the European Union. As at the
date of approval of these financial statements gablication, given the ongoing process of
implementation of the IFRS in the European Uniod tine scope of the Group’s business, as far as
the accounting policies applied by the Group anecemed there are no differences between the
IFRS which have come into force and the IFRS eratbby the European Union.

The IFRS comprise standards and interpretationgoapd by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International Ficial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC™").

[I. Going concern assumption and comparability of acounts

These consolidated financial statements have begpaped on the assumption that the Group
would continue as a going concern for the 12 moafter the most recent balance-sheet date, i.e.
December 31st 2012. As at the date of signing tfieaacial statements, the Parent’s Management
Board was aware of no facts or circumstances toatdrinvolve a threat to the Group’s continuing
as a going concern in the 12 months after the balaheet date, as a result of any planned or
forced discontinuation or material downsizing sféiisting operations.

By the date of these consolidated financial statésnfor 2012, no events occurred which have not
but should have been disclosed in the accountimdéor the reporting period. These financial
statements do not report any material events cetaterior years.

11k Basis of consolidation
a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity with respect to which tBeup has the power to govern its financial and
operating policies. Such power is usually derivenif the holding of the majority of the total vote
in the entity’s governing bodies. While assessirigetier the Group controls a given entity, the
existence and effect of potential voting rights evhmay be exercised or converted at a given time
are taken into consideration.

As at the date of acquisition of a subsidiary (ofitg control), the assets, equity and liabilitafs
the acquiree are measured at fair value. An exafebge acquisition cost over the fair value of net
identifiable assets of the acquiree is recognisegoadwill under assets in the balance sheetelf th
acquisition cost is lower than the fair value of igentifiable assets of the acquiree, the diffeeen

IS recognised as profit for the period in which #uguisition took place. Non-controlling interests
are recognised at the fair value of net assetibuaittible to such interests. In subsequent periods,
losses attributable to non-controlling intereste attributed to owners of the parent and non-
controlling interests even if, as a consequenay#iue of non-controlling interests turns negative
Subsidiaries sold during a financial year are cbdated from the beginning of the financial year
to the date of disposal. Financial results of ggiticquired during a year are recognised in the
financial statements from the date of acquisition.

Income and expenses, receivables and payablesuramedlised gains arising from intra-Group
transactions are eliminated. Unrealised losseslaeeliminated, but only to the extent there is no
evidence of impairment of the asset transferrethéntransaction. The accounting policies of the
subsidiaries have been changed whenever it was etkeracessary to align them with the
accounting policies applied by the Group.

b) Equity and transactions related to non-controllng shareholders

Interests held by non-controlling shareholdersudel interests in consolidated companies which
are not owned by the Group. Equity held by non-ailtig shareholders is determined as the
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value of net assets of the related entity which atebutable, as at the acquisition date, to
shareholders from outside the group. The valueediiced/increased by increases/decreases in
equity attributable to the value of interests hiydnon-controlling shareholders. As a rule, the
Group treats transactions with non-controlling shatders as transactions with third parties not
related to the Group.

c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group bagificant influence, but not control.
Significant influence is presumed to exist when@reup holds between 20% and 50% of the total
vote in an entity’s governing bodies. Investments$sociates are accounted for using the equity
method and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group’'s share in an associate’s net profit sflos recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, and the Group’s share ofmtheements in the entity’s other capitals after
the acquisition date is recognised under otherta@iapiThe carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted for the total changes as from the acipnsitate.

d) Companies included in the consolidated financiatatements

The following Group entities are included in thesasolidated financial statements for the periods
ended December 31st 2012 and December 31st 2011:

% of total vote
Item Dec31 | Dec31l
2012 2011

SECO/WARWICK S.A. parent
SECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A. 100% 100%
SECO/WARWICK Corp. 100% 100%
SECO/WARWICK of Delaware, Inc 100% 100%
000 SECO/WARWICK Group Moscow 100% 100%
SECO/WARWICK GmbH 100% 51%
SECO/WARWICK Retech Thermal Equipment Manufacturiignjin Co., Ltd[ 100% 100%
Retech Systems LLC 100% 100%
SECO/WARWICK Allied Pvt., Ltd. 50% 50%
00O SCT 50% -
SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH 100% -
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These consolidated financial statements have bespaged based on a historical cost approach,
except with respect to financial derivatives, whizk measured at fair value. Liabilities under the
pension plan operated by a subsidiary are alsouneésat fair value.

These financial statements are presented in thg ¢Z#BLN”), and unless specified otherwise, all
the values are given in thousands of PLN.

Presentation of financial statements

Presentation of the statement of financial position

In accordance with IAS 1 "Presentation of finan@&tements”, assets and liabilities are
presented in the balance sheet as current anduroemt

In accordance with IFRS 5, non-current assets f@ldsale are presented separately in the
statement of financial position.

Presentation of the statement of comprehensivariaco

In accordance with IAS 1 "Presentation of Financ&thtements”, in the statement of
comprehensive income expenses are presented kyofunc

Earnings per share

Earnings per share for each period are determigetiviiding net profit for the period by the
weighted average number of shares outstandingeipéhiod. The weighted average number of
shares accounts for the dilutive effect of theasstushares on the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

Intangible assets

As intangible assets the Group recognises sucltsasgech are identifiable (they can be
separated or sold), are controlled by the entityae highly probable to bring future economic
benefits to the entity.

Intangible assets include mainly software and dmrakent expense, and are initially
recognised at cost, which includes purchase progprt duties and non-deductible taxes
included in the price, decreased by discounts abates and increased by all expenditure
directly connected with the preparation of the tfsdts intended use.

In order to determine whether a self-created intdagsset meets the recognition criteria for
an asset, the entity distinguishes two phaseimasket origination process:

- the research phase,
- the development phase.
All costs originating in the first phase are chargéaectly to expenses of the period.

Intangible assets created as a result of developwerk are capitalised by the Group only if
the following criteria are met:

- itis certain that the intangible asset will lmempleted,
- itis possible to demonstrate that the assebeamsed or sold,
- the expenditure incurred can be measured reliably

Goodwill arises on acquisition of a business andesponds to the excess of the cost of
business combination over the acquirer’s sharehénfair value of net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. Followingitial recognition, goodwill is recognised at cost
less cumulative impairment losses. Goodwill is anobrtised.
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The table below summarises the Group’s accountligips with respect to intangible assets:

Item Patents and licences Computer software
Useful life 5-10 years 5-15 years
Amortised throughout the . . . .
Method used agreement term using the straig “_Amomsed using the straight-ling
. method
line method
Origin Acquired Acquired

ﬁ
(¢}

Review for impairment / Annual assessment whether thgreAnnual assessment whether the
recoverable value testing | are any indications of impairmerrt are any indications of impairme

—

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at @sst tumulative depreciation and impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged using the straight-linehodtby estimating the useful life of a given
asset, which is:

Buildings and structures from 10 to 40 years
Plant and equipment from 5 to 30 years
Vehicles from 5 to 10 years
Other tangible assets from 5 to 15 years

Non-current assets held under finance lease agrégerave been disclosed in the balance
sheet equally with other non-current assets andepeeciated in the same way.

The initial values of non-current assets held unfileince lease agreements and of the
obligations corresponding with such assets haven laetermined at amounts equal to the
discounted value of future lease payments. Leagmgats made in the reporting period have
been charged against finance lease liabilitiesiiaraount equal to the principal instalment and
the excess (the finance charge) has been chardelti o finance expense of the period.

Any gains and losses arising on a sale or liquidiatire determined as the difference between
the income from the sale and the net value ofdhgible assets, and are recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group has adopted the rule that the residuakwvaf tangible assets is always equal to
“zero”.

Tangible assets under construction

Tangible assets under construction include experaibn property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets which are not yet fit for use but highly probable that they will be
completed. Tangible assets under construction aagepted in the balance sheet at cost less
impairment losses. Tangible assets under consiruatie not depreciated.

Investment property

The Group classifies as investment property allpprty which is considered a source of
income (earns rentals) and/or is held for cappareciation.

Investment property is carried at cost less cunwadadepreciation and impairment losses, if
any.
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Depreciation is charged over the estimated usdgilof the investment property, using the
straight line method. Land is not depreciated.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assetanclude equity interests in related entities, essaefair value through profit or
loss, hedging derivatives, loans and receivabldsash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, other types of foiag, overdraft
facilities, financial liabilities at fair value tbugh profit or loss, hedging derivatives, trade
payables, liabilities to suppliers of property,mgland equipment, and lease liabilities.

Except for investments in subsidiaries, jointly tolled entities and associates, which are
carried at cost in accordance with IAS 27 and IAS fnancial assets and liabilities are
recognised and measured in line with IAS 39 "Fimanénstruments: Recognition and

Measurement”.

Recognition and measurement of financial assets

Upon initial recognition, financial assets are igased at fair value, which in the case of
investments not measured at fair value throughitpsofoss is increased by transaction costs
directly attributed to such assets.

Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried atirnmitially invoiced, less any impairment
losses on doubtful receivables. Impairment lossesraxeivables are estimated when the
collection of the full amount of a receivable islooger probable.

If the effect of the time value of money is matkribe value of a receivable is determined by
discounting the projected future cash flows to rthpgesent value using a discount rate that
reflects the current market estimates of the tiralier of money. If the discount method has
been applied, any increase in the receivable amwithtthe passage of time is recognised as
finance income.

Other receivables include in particular prepaymentade in connection with planned
purchases of property, plant and equipment, intdegissets and inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are held mainly in cdiomewith the need to meet the Group’s
current demand for cash rather than for investroeaty other purposes.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bankuatgocash in hand, as well as all liquid
instruments which may immediately be converted @ash of known amount and in the case of
which the risk of value changes is insignificant.

Recognition and measurement of financial liabilitge

Liabilities under bank borrowingand other financial liabilities are initially regoised at fair
value and then carried at amortised cost usingftleetive interest rate method.

Transaction costs directly connected with acquaisitor issue of a financial liability increase
the carrying amount of the liability, because ujmtial recognition the liability is recognised
at the fair value of amounts paid or received ichexge for the liability. Thereafter, such costs
are amortised throughout the term of the liabilitying the effective interest rate method.

Hedge accounting

There are three types of hedging relationships:
a) a fair value hedge: a hedge of the exposure togdsam the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an identified portion of suah asset, liability or highly probable future
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liability that is attributable to a particular ris&nd could affect the statement of
comprehensive income;

b) a cash flow hedge: a hedge of the exposure to hiitjain cash flows that (i) is
attributable to a particular risk associated witteeognised asset or liability and (ii) could
affect the statement of comprehensive income;

c) ahedge of a net investment in a foreign operat®defined in IAS 21.

A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accauwntif, and only if, all of the following

conditions are met:

a) The hedging relationship is formally designated dogdumented, including the entity’s
risk management objective and strategy for entigyliedge, at the time when the hedge is
undertaken. The relevant documentation identifieshtedging instrument, the hedged item
or transaction, the nature of the hedged risk, ab &s how the entity will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting gxposure to changes in the fair value of
the hedged item or cash flows attributable to tndged risk.

b) The hedge is expected to be highly effective iseatting changes in the fair value or cash
flows attributable to the hedged risk, based onottiginally documented risk management
strategy pertaining to a given hedging relationship

¢) Inthe case of a cash flow hedge, the contemplas@daction to which the hedge relates is
highly probable and exposed to variability in célslwvs, which may ultimately affect the
statement of comprehensive income.

d) The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably oredsi.e. the fair value or cash flows of
the hedged item attributable to the hedged riskyels as the fair value of the hedging
instrument, can be reliably measured.

e) The hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis anthohetérto have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for whtbe hedge was designated.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at cost, using a weighteslage cost formula. Any downward
adjustment of the value of inventories to the redlirgy price is made through recognition of
impairment losses. Furthermore, inventories that slow-moving or which have become
obsolete or whose usability has become in any waiyeld, are revalued as at the end of each
financial year. If the circumstances leading toeardase in the value of inventories cease to
apply, a reverse adjustment is made, i.e. invezdoaire remeasured at their pre-impairment
value.

Impairment losses on inventories and stocktakisgrdpancies are charged to cost of products
sold.

Deferred income tax

In line with IAS 12 "Income Taxes", deferred incon& is determined using the liability
method and recognised in the financial statemesrtalf temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities andrtfaei values, as well as for any unused tax loss
carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets are recogrfisetemporary differences to the extent it is
probable that the assets will be realised andtthatble profit will be available against which
the differences can be utilised. Unrecognised dedfetax assets are reviewed as at each
balance-sheet date. Any previously unrecogniseérdaf tax assets are recognised to the
extent it is probable that there will be futuredhbe income against which the assets can be
realised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all dedactiomporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates orthyetextent it is probable that:

- the temporary differences will reverse in theekmeable future, and

- taxable profit will be available against whiclettemporary differences can be utilised.
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In line with 1AS 12, deferred tax assets and liéib$ are not discounted. Deferred income tax
is determined based on the tax rates that have dmgeted or substantively enacted as at the
balance-sheet date.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has agntesbligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that atflaw of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligati@amd a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the Group anticipatiest the costs for which provisions have been
made will be recovered, e.g. under an insuranceeaggnt, any such recovery is recognised as
a separate item of assets, but only when it istioadly certain to occur.

The cost related to a given provision is recognisethe statement of comprehensive income
net of any recoveries. If the effect of the timdueaof money is material, the amount of a
provision is determined by discounting the projddigture cash flows to their present value,
using a pre-tax discount rate reflecting the curnearket estimates of the time value of money,
as well as any risk associated with a given olibgatlf the discount method has been applied,
any increase in the provision with the passagéw ts charged to finance expenses.

The estimates of outcome and financial effect asgerdhined by the judgement of the
companies’ management, based on past experiersimidir transactions and, in some cases,
reports from independent experts.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance-sheet atateadjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an awtflof resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, the pgsben is reversed.

The Group recognises the following provisions:
e provision for warranty repairs — on the basis ef listorical cost of warranty repairs;

* provision for accrued holiday entitlements — inagmount equivalent to the number of
days of accrued unused holidays multiplied by ayegross daily pay;

e provision for retirement benefits and length-ofvée® awards — calculated by
actuaries;

e provision for employee benefits — bonus paymemisries and wages;

e provision for probable costs related to the curfarncial year which will only be
invoiced in the following year (accrued expens&8pending on the type of accrued
expenses, they are charged to costs of products selling costs or general and
administrative expenses;

® provision for a defined benefit plan. Fixed coniitibns are paid to a separate entity (a
fund), as a consequence of which the actuarial (tisikt benefits will be lower than
expected) and investment risk (that assets invesitdoe insufficient to meet the
expected benefits) are borne by the Group.

Assumptions underlying the estimates and the pi@mvismounts are reviewed as at each
balance-sheet date.

Accruals and deferred income

In order to ensure the matching of revenues witkted expenses, expenses relating to future
periods and deferred income are posted underitiabibf a given reporting period.

Accrued expenses

The Group recognises accrued expenses at probaliesvof current-period liabilities arising
in particular under:
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» services provided to the Company by its tradingrneas, where the liability can be
reliably estimated,

e up to the estimated contract revenue, advances/egcender construction contracts
reduce the receivables under settlement of lorng-temtracts.

Deferred and accrued income

Deferred/accrued income includes primarily governnggants intended to finance assets and
revenue, as well as any excess of estimated revextaied to the stage of completion of a
long-term contract, in accordance with IAS 11, cadvances received.

Government grants are disclosed in the statemefharfcial position at the amount of funds
received and then recognised as income over thedsenecessary to match them with the
related costs they are intended to compensate sgstamatic basis. Government grants are not
credited directly to equity.

Accruals and deferrals settled over a period lontigan 12 months as from the balance-sheet
date are classified as non-current accruals aretrdés, whereas those settled over a period of
12 months or shorter are classified as currenuatxand deferrals.

Functional currency and presentation currency

a) Functional currency and presentation currency

Items of the financial statements are measurechén durrency of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates (“fun@lacurrency”). The financial statements

are presented in the Polish ztoty (PLN), whichhis functional currency and the presentation
currency of the Group.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated inéoftinctional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactibieseign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of these transactions, as agefrom balance-sheet valuation of monetary
assets and liabilities expressed in foreign cuiesnare recognised in profit or loss, unless they
are taken to equity (when they qualify for recoipmitas cash flow hedges or hedges of net
investments).

V. Material judgements and estimates

In view of the fact that many items presented ie fimancial statements cannot be measured
accurately, certain estimates need to be made dnptbparation of the consolidated separate
financial statements. The Management Board revisuch estimates taking into account the
changes in the factors on which such estimates based, new information and past experience.
Therefore, the estimates made as at December @128trlay change in the future.

Depreciation/amortisation charges

Depreciation/amortisation charges are determinesedaon the expected useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible as3éts Group reviews the useful lives of its
assets annually, on the basis of current estimates.

Depreciation/amortisation charges for assets usedeu finance lease agreements

Depreciation/amortisation charges for items of prog plant and equipment and intangible
assets used under finance lease agreements ammidetkbased on their expected useful lives,
which is consistent with depreciation policy forses that are owned. Useful lives equal to
agreement term are not applied. The Group assumasassets used under lease agreements
must be purchased.
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Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respectl efnaked tax losses to be deducted in the
future to the extent it is probable that taxablefipwill be available which will enable these
losses to be utilised.

Provision for accrued holidays

Provision for accrued holidays is determined basedhe number of days of accrued unused
holidays as at the end of the reporting period.

Provision for old-age and disability retirement legits

Disability severance payments and retirement banase paid to employees of the Group’s
subsidiaries operating under the Polish law in edaace with the provisions of Art. 92 of the
Polish Labour Code, whereas at foreign companiet @ayments or bonuses are paid in
accordance with the local labour laws. Actuaridugtion of long- and short-term benefits is
performed as at the end of each financial year.

Provision for warranty repairs

Provision for warranty repairs is calculated onbhasis of the historical costs of manufacturing
of the equipment sold and of the warranty repagsenn the previous years.

Long-term contracts

To account for long-term contracts, the Group &spthe provisions of IAS 11 "Construction
Contracts". When the outcome of a construction reabtcan be estimated reliably, the
percentage of completion method is used. The sthgempletion is determined by reference
to the contract costs incurred to date and thé ¢o&ts planned to be incurred.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group mad&imates regarding the outcome of each
contract. When it is probable that total contramsts will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is immediately recognised in praoflbss.

The amount of such a loss is determined irrespeatfvwhether or not work has commenced
on the contract, the stage of completion of contaativity, or the amount of profits expected
to arise on other contracts which are not treatesirggle construction contracts in accordance
with IAS 11:9.

The Group applies the above rules to account forngercial contracts related to the Group’s
core business whose performance terms exceedrtioeths and whose total value is material
from the point of view of reliability of the finara statements (revenue, expenses, and the
financial result). The Group accrues only documgméxenue, i.e. revenue which is guaranteed
under the original contract, adjusted to accountfty subsequent amendments to the original
contract (annexes), or which constitutes any otbeenue closely related to the project. Any
changes of the contract revenue are taken intouatdit is certain (i.e. a contract or annexes
to a contract have been signed) or at least highbpable (i.e. annexes to a contract or
preliminary contracts have been initialled) thag ttient will accept the amendments and the
revenue amounts provided for in the amendmentssacid revenue can be reliably measured.
The stage of completion of a contract is determimgdeference to the contract costs actually
incurred in the reporting period and documentedapyropriate accounting evidence, and the
costs of business partners not yet invoiced.

The revenue as at the end of the reporting pesodetermined based on the percentage of
completion of the contract, net of any revenue Wraéfected the financial result in previous
reporting periods. Estimated contract revenue baitable to the given reporting period is
recognised as revenue from sales of products gopérniod, and disclosed under assets in the
statement of financial position as receivables usdttlement of long-term contracts.
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Any excess of advances received under a contrasttbe estimated revenue attributable to a
given reporting period is recognised under lialeditas prepaid deliveries. Up to the amount of
the estimated contract revenue, advances reduaedb&/ables under settlement of long-term

contracts.
Any excess of invoiced revenue is recognised aaraaf income.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are remeasuretth@tend of each reporting period at their fair

value as determined by the bank.

Subijective judgement

Where a given transaction does not fall within s#eepe of any standard or interpretation, the
Management Board relies on its subjective judgnterdetermine and apply accounting policies
which will ensure that the financial statementstaomonly relevant and reliable information and

that they:

* give an accurate, clear and fair view of the Grewgssets, its financial standing, results of

operations and cash flows,
» reflect the economic substance of transactions,
e are objective,
« conform with the principles of prudent valuation,

e are complete in all material respects.

Subijective judgements as at December 31st 2012 made with respect to contingent liabilities

and provisions for claims.

VI. Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies applied to prepare the ahfimancial statements are consistent with the
policies applied in the preparation of the finahamtements for the year ended December 31st
2012, save for the effect of application of theldeing amendments to standards and new
standards and interpretations effective for anpeébds beginning on or after January 1st 2013.

The Group did not choose to apply early any newdsteds and interpretations which have already
been issued and endorsed by the European Uniomilbbe effective after the balance-sheet date.

Standard Nature of impending change in accounting policy

Possible impact on financial
statements

The amendments eliminate the corridor approachgeéhany financial deficit or surplus
a plan is recognised in full amount. Also, diffareresentation of gains and losses rel3
to a defined benefit plan is no longer possible piyment costs and finance costs
recognised in profit or loss, and the effect of aleation is disclosed in oth
comprehensive income, owing to which the effectesfaluation is presented separaf
(July 16th 2011) from changes resulting from day-to-day operatiddisclosure requirements concern
defined benefit plans have been expanded in oodketter reflect the nature of the plg
and related risk.

Amendments to IAS
19 "Employee
Benefits"

Df

48

:;gne Management Board doq

ely

ng
ns

ot expect the amendments

have any material impact o
the accounting policies

applied by the Company.

n

to

Effective date: January 1st 2015.
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VII. New standards to be applied by the Group

Below are presented new standards and IFRIC irgipons which have been published by the
International Accounting Standards Board but arteyrbeffective for the current reporting period.

Standard

Nature of impending change in accounting policy

Effective for
periods beginning
on or after:

IFRS 9 "Financial
Instruments”
(November 12th
2009)

The new standard replaces the guidance containéiSr89 Financial Instruments: Recognition 4
Measurement, regarding classification and measureofdinancial assets. The standard eliminateq
existing IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, itakzle for sale and loans and receivables. Fin
assets will be classified into one of two categodr initial recognition:

- financial assets measured at amortised costfimancial assets measured at fair value.

A financial asset that meets the following two dtiods can be measured at amortised cost
objective of the entity's business model is to hiblel financial asset to collect the contractuahd
flows, and the contractual terms of the financisset give rise on specified dates to cash flowsétes
solely payments of principal and interest on thegjpal outstanding.

Gains and losses on remeasurement of financiaisassmasured at fair value are recognised in poo
loss, except for an investment in an equity insgmhwhich is not held for trading. IFRS 9 provides
initial recognition, an irrevocable election to geat all fair value changes from the investmerdtirer
comprehensive income (OCI). Such election is irceide. The election is available on an individ
instrument-by-instrument basis. No amount recoghiseéDCI may be ever reclassified to profit or |
at a later date.

January 1st 2015

IFRS 10
"Consolidated
Financial
Statements" (May
12th 2011)

IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" witlaee IAS 27 "Consolidated and Separate Final
Statements" and supersede interpretation SIC 1&s@idation — Special Purpose Entities". Un
IFRS 10, an entity may be consolidated only isitontrolled, irrespective of the nature of theestee
which eliminates the risk and rewards method pitesem SIC 12. According to IFRS 10, an inveq
controls an investee if and only if the investos h#l of the following elements:

- power over the investee,
- exposure, or rights, to variable returns fromoirrement with the investee,
- the ability to use its power over the investeaffect the amount of the investor's returns.

An investor considers all relevant facts and cirstances when assessing whether it control
investee. Such assessment is revised if therengreeasons to conclude that at least one of theed
control conditions has changed. IFRS 10 stipuldétailed guidelines on determining control in vas
situations, including with respect to agency relasi and potential voting rights. If facts
circumstances change, an investor must re-assealility to control an investee. IFRS 10 replate
IAS 27 provisions concerning time and manner oparation of consolidated financial statements
an investor and disapplies interpretation SIC 1filin

cidanuary 1st 2014
Her

tor

IFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements (May
12th 2011)

The standard replaces IAS 31 "Interests in Jointes" and SIC 13 "Jointly Controlled Entitied
Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers". IFRS 14assifies joint arrangements as a joint operg
(combination of the existing concepts of jointlyntwlled assets and jointly controlled operationmsis
a joint venture (corresponding to the existing apiof jointly controlled entities). - A joint opsion
is a joint arrangement whereby the parties thaehawt control of the arrangement have rightshie
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relgtito the arrangement. - A joint venture is a j
arrangement whereby the parties that have jointrabaf the arrangement have rights to the netta:
of the arrangement. IFRS 11 requires that a jentwrer account for its interest in a joint ventusang
the equity method, thus disapplying the proportionansolidation method. A party to a joi
arrangement determines the type of joint arrangéimenhich it is involved by assessing its rightsl
obligations. Existence of a separate legal ergitya longer the basic condition of classification.

—January 1st 2014
tion
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Effective for

Standard Nature of impending change in accounting policy periods beginning
on or after:
IFRS 12 An entity should disclose information that enahlesrs of financial statements to evaluate the aftulanuary 1st 2014

"Disclosure of
Interests in Other
Entities”

of, and risks associated with, its interests inepténtities and the effects of those intereststs
financial statements. IFRS 12 determines the disc®objectives and the minimum scope of disclo|
required to satisfy those objectives. An entitydtidisclose information that enables users ofrfone
statements to evaluate the nature of, and risksceed with, its interests in other entities ahd
effects of those interests on its financial stateieDisclosure requirements are extensive.

h i
Eure

t

IFRS 13 "Fair
Value
Measurement"”
(May 12th 2011)

The standard provides guidelines on fair value nregsent for the purposes of all other standards.
standard applies to both financial and non-findriténs. Rather than introducing any new or revi
requirements with respect to items to be recogniseaieasured at fair value, IFRS 13: - defines
value,

- sets out in a single IFRS a framework for measufair value,

- requires disclosures about fair value measuresnéygplication of the new standard may necess|
change of the valuation method for individual iteamsl disclosure of additional information relatiog
the valuation.

TRanuary 1st 2013
sed
fair

tate

IAS 27 "Separate

The requirements concerning accounting and dismostiinformation on investments in subsidiar

lesJanuary 1st 2014

Financial associates and joint venture are unchanged withecesto separate financial statements and| are

Statements" (May | incorporated in the modified IAS 27. Other requiests contained in IAS 27 have been replaced with

12th 2011) the requirements laid down in IFRS 10.

IAS 28 The standard has been modified so as to ensuréstanty with IFRS 10 and IFRS 11. The rules|fodanuary 1st 2014

"Investments in
Associates and Joil|
Ventures" (May
12th 2012)

accounting for investments in associates usingethéty method have not been changed. In line
IFRS 11, the guidelines for equity method accountapply also to joint ventures (the proportio|
consolidation method has been disapplied).

ith
hal

Deferred Tax:
Recovery of
Underlying Assets
(amendment to IAS
12)

The 2010 amendment introduces an exception to tineerd measurement principles based on
manner of recovery, contained in paragraph 52 & I®. This exception concerns deferred ta
investment property measured using the fair-valodehpursuant to IAS 40 through a presumption
the carrying value of these assets will be recalemy through disposal. Plans of the Managen
Board will be immaterial, unless the investmentparty is subject to depreciation and is held at @
a business model, the aim of which is to consunmst all of the economic benefits associated wi
given asset during its useful life. This is theyanistance in which the presumption can be rebutted

January 1st 2012

Severe
Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time
Adopters

The amendment adds an exemption to IFRS 1 thantéy ean apply at the date of transition to IFH
after being subject to severe hyperinflation. Téemption allows an entity to measure assets|
liabilities held before the functional currency malization date at fair value and use that faiugads
the deemed cost of those assets and liabilitidssimpening IFRS statement of financial position.

July 1st 2011

Offsetting Financial
Assets and
Financial Liabilities
(amendment to IAS
32 of December
16th 2011)

The amendment clarifies the rules for offsettintaficial assets and liabilities. IAS 32 prescrihdss]
for the offsetting of financial assets and finahdiabilities. It specifies that a financial assatd 3
financial liability should be offset and the net@mt reported when, and only when, an entity h
legally enforceable right to set off the amountd amends either to settle on a net basis, orabsethe
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

January 1st 2014

Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial
Assets and
Financial Liabilities
(amendment to
IFRS 7 of
December 16th
2011)

Under this amendment to IFRS 7, entities are reduip disclose information on all the recogni
financial instruments which are presented on @asis in accordance with paragraph 42 of IAS 23.

January 1st 2013
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Standard

Nature of impending change in accounting policy

Effective for
periods beginning
on or after:

Government loans
(amendment to
IFRS 1 of March
13th 2012)

This project seeks to amend the requirements fet-time adoption to mirror the requirements
existing IFRS preparers in relation to the appicrabf amendments made to IAS 20 Accounting
Government Grants and Disclosure of Governmentséaste in relation to accounting for governm
loans. The amendments to IAS 20 were made in 2@@8jring an entity to measure government Ig
with a below-market rate of interest in the samamea as government grants, i.e. at fair value aial
recognition. The proposed amendment would reqbiae first-time adopters apply this requiremen
IAS 20 prospectively to loans entered into on derafthe date of transition to IFRSs. However, if
entity obtained the information necessary to apipdyrequirements to a government loan as a refal
past transaction, then it may choose to apply I1B3e2rospectively to that loan.

January 1st 2013

Improvements to
IFRS (2009-2011
cycle) (May 17th
2012)

Amendments were introduced to the following staddatFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Internatiol
Financial Reporting Standards

- Repeated application of IFRS 1,

- Exemption for borrowing costs - with respect sse&ts subject to improvement which were placq
service before the adoption of IFRS. MSR 1 Presiemtaof financial statements - Clarification

requirements concerning comparative information I1A8 Property, Plant and Equipment]
Classification of servicing equipment IAS 32 Fin@ahinstruments: Presentation - Clarification ttie
tax effect of distribution to holders of equity insnents should be accounted for under IAS 12 Irg]
Taxes. IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - Clardfion of interim reporting on total assets

reportable segments with a view to improving cdesisy with IFRS 8 Operating Segments

January 1st 2013

Transition Guidanc
(amendments to
IFRS 10, IFRS 11
and IFRS 12) of
June 28th 2012

e The purpose of this guidance is to clarify the regaents applicable in the period of transitionRBRS
10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12.

In the case of entities that provide comparatiwesohly one period, the amendments: - simplify
process of adopting IFRS 10 by introducing a resqa@nt to check whether consolidation of an ergi
required only at the beginning of the year in whiERS 10 is applied for the first time; - remove
disclosure requirement in respect of the impaa ohange in accounting policy for the year in wH
the standards are adopted; the disclosure of sophat is still required for the immediately preceyl
year; - require disclosures in respect of uncodatd structured entities to be made only prosgagti
In the case of entities that voluntarily provided#idnal comparative information, the restatemeh|
comparatives is limited only to the period immeeigipreceding the year of first-time adoption o
standards.

January 1st 2013

Investment Entities
(amendments to
IFRS 10, IFRS 12
and IAS 27) of
October 31st 2012

An investment entity is an entity whose businessp@se is to make investments for cap
appreciation, investment income (in the form ofidiénd or interest), or both. The amendment clar
that an investment entity should evaluate the pedince of the investments it controls on a faiugq
basis through profit or loss, without consolidatthgm.

January 1st 2014
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Effective for

Standard Nature of impending change in accounting policy periods beginning
on or after:
KIMSF 20: The interpretation requires the costs of strippagjvity to be accounted for in accordance with| January 1st 2013
Stripping Costs in | principles of IAS 2 Inventories to the extent tha benefit from the stripping activity is realisedthe
the Production form of inventory produced. The costs of strippifivity which provides a benefit in the form
Phase of a Surface| improved access to ore is recognised as a nonntustepping activity asset where the followi
Mine criteria are met:

- it is probable that the future economic benefitpfoved access to the ore body) associated wl
stripping activity will flow to the entity, - thengity can identify the component of the ore body
which access has been improved, - the costs rglatinthe stripping activity associated with tl
component can be measured reliably. When the ofdtse stripping activity asset and the invent
produced are not separately identifiable, produacsiripping costs are allocated between the inver
produced and the non-current stripping activityebds/ using an allocation basis that is based
relevant production measure. A stripping activigset is accounted for as an addition to, or a
enhancement of, an existing asset and classifiednagble or intangible according to the naturehaf
existing asset of which it forms part.

A stripping activity asset is initially measuretdcast and subsequently carried at cost or itslueds
amount less depreciation or amortisation and impext losses. A stripping activity asset is deptedi
or amortised on a systematic basis, over the eggacteful life of the identified component of the
body that becomes more accessible as a resuledfttipping activity. The units of production mei]
is used unless another method is more appropriate.

The Management Board does not expect the aboveasti and interpretations to have any
significant effect on the accounting policies apglby the Group, save for the need to make certain
additional or new disclosures. The Parent's ManaggrBoard is in the process of analysing the

consequences and effects of applying these newdast@dsm and interpretations on its financial
statements.
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THE SECO/WARWICK GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31ST 2012
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Note 1. REVENUE

As provided for under IAS 18, revenue from saleprofiucts, merchandise, materials and services,
net of any VAT, discounts and rebates, is recoghigken the entity has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards incidental tartbenership.

Revenue from sales and total revenue and income thie Group:

Item 2012 2011
Sales of products 484,683 368,612
Sales of merchandise and materials 122|509 2,352
TOTAL revenue from sales 497,192 370,964
Other income 2,982 1,866
Finance income 8,267 466
TOTAL revenue and income 508,441 373,296

Note 2. OPERATING SEGMENTS

IFRS 8 "Operating Segments”, which has supersedeuiogosly binding IAS 14 "Segment
Reporting”, has been effective since January 1$920rhe new standard introduces the
“management approach” to segment disclosures andires that segment information be
presented based on those components of the ehttytihe management monitors in making
decisions about operating matters. An operatingneeg is a component of an entity for which
discrete financial information is available and whaesults are reviewed regularly by the entity’s
chief decision maker to make decisions about ressuto be allocated to the segment and assess
its performance. This change in accounting starsdheg had no impact on the Group’s segment
reporting.

The SECO/WARWICK Group’s business comprises thiefdhg segments:

Vacuum furnaces (Vacuum)

Vacuum furnaces have multiple applications in a Ipemof industries, including machine tool,
aviation, power, electrical engineering, medicalipment, automotive and specialised industries.
Vacuum furnaces may be used in a wide variety o€gsses, such as heat treatment of steel and
alloys, brazing, sintering, and degassing. Useaguum furnaces brings economic benefits. They
are also environmentally friendly.

Aluminium heat exchanger brazing systems (CAB)

The CAB systems are used primarily in the autoneoiivdustry for brazing heat exchangers

mounted in passenger cars and trucks (charge ailersp air conditioning evaporators and

condensers, oil coolers, etc.). Outside the autohdustry, CAB processes are used in the
manufacture of IC radiators, steam condensers KiP @lants, exhaust gas heat exchangers for
power generators, etc.

Atmosphere furnaces (Thermal)

Atmosphere furnaces are widely used in the prooés#isermal and thermochemical treatment of
steel and metals in protective atmospheres fordorgat hardness. Atmosphere furnaces designed
for thermochemical treatment are employed in the garburising, gas nitriding and other
processes. Such furnaces are used chiefly by toenative and metal industries, including for the
manufacturing of anti-friction bearings, as well fas use in commercial hardening plants and
specialty industries.
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Aluminium heat treatment systems (Aluminium Procesk

The SECO/WARWICK Group specialises in a selectedgeaof aluminium heat treatment
processes, which generally offer a plethora of iappbns. The Aluminium Process solutions
offered by the Group are used in the productioalaiinium sheet for the automotive and aviation
industries, as well as for the manufacturing oflqaging foil for multiple applications. In addition,
the Aluminium Process systems are used to heatai@ainium castings.

Melting furnaces

The metallurgy applications of the vacuum meltingnfices include alloying, melting and
purifying specialty metals, including reactive metée.g. titanium, zirconium) and heat-resistant
metals (e.g. tantalum). Due to their physical propg, specialty metals may only be treated with
the use of technologically advanced solutions uhégr vacuum conditions.

The different types of melting furnaces include tmgl and holding furnaces used for the
manufacture of precision castings (such as compgsra#net engines, power turbines, and medical
implants).

Melting furnaces may also be used as an elemenhefglobally-unique processes involving
disposal of hazardous waste (such as nuclear Wupts).

Other

Reportable geographical segments, delineated lwaséte geographical location of the respective
sales markets, are as follows:

0 domestic market (Poland),
o the EU market (excluding Poland),

o0 the Russian market and the markets of other fonrmembers of the Soviet
Union (Russia, Belarus, Ukraine)

o the US market,
o the Asian market,
0 other countries.

Financial data for the segments includes only segma/enue, expenses and segment's profit or
loss. It is impracticable for the Group to allocatsets to the particular segments as its plant and
equipment (including buildings and structures)iared by all the segments.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS - 2012

Continuing operations

Item Vacuum CAB Atmospherg Aluminium [ Melting Total Dcl)%ceorr;ttliglrjzd Un?ltl(lac:ggted Total
Furnaces Furnaces Process [ Furnaces

Total segment revenue 123,508 38,913 62,914 36,189| 204,899 466,422 30,770 497,192
External sales, including: 123,508 38,913 62,914 36,189 204,899 466,422 30,770 497,192
Total segment expenses -91,922  -27,738 -49,209 -26,297| -157,637 -352,804 -25,338 -378,142
Administrative expenses -54,866 -54,866
Distribution costs -25,203 -25,203
Operating income 2,982 2,982
Operating expenses -3,275 -3,275
Segment profit/(loss) on operating
activities 38,689
Finance income 8,267 8,267
Net finance costs -8,541 -8,541
Pre-tax profit 38,415
Actual tax expense -11,674 -11,674
Profit/(loss) from continuing
operations 26,740
Loss of control
Share in profit of associate 1,122 1,122
Profit (loss) attributable to non-
controlling interests 307 307
Net profit/(loss) for period 28,170
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OPERATING SEGMENTS - 2011

Continuing operations

Discontinued

Unallocated

Item Vacuum CAB Atmospherg Aluminium | Melting Total operations items Total
Furnaces Furnaces Process | Furnaces

Total segment revenue 86,661 28,171 79,426 28,494 117,260 340,013 30,951 370,964
External sales, including: 86,661 28,171 79,426 28,494 117,260 340,013 30,951 370,964
Total segment expenses -63,684] -18,866 -56,956 -21,686] -95,558| -256,750 -22,005 -278,755
Administrative expenses -42,509 -42,509
Distribution costs -20,107 -20,107
Operating income 1,866 1,866
Operating expenses -2,434 -2,434
Segment profit/(loss) on operating

activities 22,977 9,305 22,470 6,808 21,703 83,263 29,025
Finance income 466 466
Net finance costs -9,791 -9,791
Pre-tax profit 19,700
Actual tax expense -4,936 -4,936
Profit/(loss) on continuing operations 14,765
Loss of control -1,161 -1,161
Share in profit of associate 1,196 1,196
Profit (loss) attributable to non-

controlling interests 294 294
Net profit/(loss) for period 15,093
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GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS - 2012
Russia
Iltem Poland EU Belarus us Asia Other Total
Ukraine
|
Total segment
revenue 22,916 112,761 82,056 170,046 96,264 13,149 497,192
External sales —
continuing operations,
including: 22,916 112,761 82,056 170,046 96,264 13,149 497,192
|
Segment's non-currenit
assets 131,755 2,819 194| 23,336/ 1,028 0 159,131
Capital expenditure 8,299 176| 1,559 178 10,212
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS - 2011
Russia
Item Poland EU Belarus us Asia Other Total
Ukraine
|
Total segment
revenue 145,058 26,458 1,1037| 90,149 6,1081] 37,181 370,964
External sales —
continuing operations,
including: 145,058 26,458 1,1037| 90,149 6,1081 3,7181 370,964
|
Segment's non-current
assgets 134,978 10 45| 24573 1,247 0 160,853
Capital expenditure 4,498 10 3| 2,776 210 7.497
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Note 3. OPERATING EXPENSES
Jan 1-Dec 31 Jan 1-Dec 31
COSTS BY NATURE OF EXPENSE 2012 2011
Depreciation and amortisation 7291 6.272
Raw materials and consumables used 222.865 147,950
Services 45,411 48,458
Taxes and charges 1.140 1.159
Salaries and wages 92,213 71,539
Social security and other benefits 20,578 15,942
Defined benefit plan 640 451
Other costs 58,443 46,683
Total costs by nature of expense, including: 448,581 338,454
Distribution costs -25.203 -20,107
Administrative expenses -54.866 42,509
Change in products 1,780 1.899
Work performed by entity and capitalised 1,087 672
Cost of products sold and services rendered 368,306 277.064
DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RECOGNISED IN Jan %alDzec CL :ZlalDleC s1
PROFIT OR LOSS
Items recognised in cost of sales: 4,435 3,928
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,920 3,506
Amortisation of intangible assets 515 422
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Items recognised in distribution costs 439 388
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 356 182
Amortisation of intangible assets 83 206
Cost of operating leases
Items recognised in administrative expenses 2,403 1,943
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,374 1,580
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,029 364
Cost of operating leases
Items recognised in other expenses: 13 13
Depreciation of investment property 13 13
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Jan 1-Dec 31 | Jan 1-Dec 31
PERSONNEL COSTS 2012 2011
Salaries and wages 92,213 71,539
Social security and other benefits 19,379 14,919
Defined benefit plan 640 451
Retirement benefits
Other post-employment benefits
Share-based payment scheme
Other employee benefits 1,199 1,023
Total employee benefit expense, including: 113,431 87,932
Items recognised in cost of sales 66,657 53,579
Items recognised in distribution costs 15,875 12,593
Items recognised in administrative expenses: 30,899 21,761
Note 4. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Jan 1-Dec 31| Jan 1-Dec 31
OTHER INCOME 2012 2011
Reversal of impairment losses on receivables 262
Reversal of provisions 283
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 39
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment 39 40
Awarded reimbursement of court fees 3 106
Penalties and compensation/damages received 90 60
Settlement of stocktaking surpluses 27
Income from re-invoicing 38
The license fees 569
Income from lease of tangible assets and investpreperty 1,285 1,080
Revenues for the mishap 32
Other 644 252
Total other income 2,982 1,866
Jan 1-Dec 31| Jan 1-Dec 31
OTHER EXPENSES 2012 2011
Impairment losses on receivables 215 1595
Revaluation of inventories 722
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6| 8 3
Court expenses, compensation/damages, penalties 697 25
Revaluation of tangible asset 224
Cost of lease of tangible assets 534 500
Cost of discontinued production 98
Services purchase cost for re-invoicing 14
Donations 83 53
Provision for penalties 100
Costs associated with acts of God 31 42
Stocktaking shortage 21
Other 486 181
Total other expenses 3,275 2 434
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Jan 1-Dec 31 Jan 1-Dec 31
FINANCE INCOME 2012 2011
Interest income 271 459
Gain on disposal of investments 7,972
Other 24 7
Total finance income 8,267 466
Jan 1-Dec 31 Jan 1-Dec 31
FINANCE COSTS 2012 2011
Interest paid 1,395 1,764
Loss on derivative instruments at maturity 258 1,047
Balance sheet valuation of derivative instruments 31(7 6,297
Net foreign exchange losses 6,025 401
Other 132 282
Total finance costs 8,541 9,791

Note 6. INCOME TAX AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The main items of the tax expense for the annuabge ended December 31st 2012 and December

31st 2011 were as follows:

INCOME TAX DISCLOSED IN THE INCOME Jan 1-Dec 31 Jan 1-Dec 31
STATEMENT 2012 2011

Current income tax 9,694 4,158
Current income tax expense 9,694 4,158
Adjustments to current income tax for previous gear
Deferred income tax 1,980 777
Related to temporary differences and their reversal 1,980 777
Related to reduction of income tax rates
Income tax benefit arising from transactions inuadvitems of
equity
Tax expense disclosed in the income statement 11,674 4,936

Deferred income tax disclosed in the income staten® equal to the difference between the
balances of deferred tax liabilities and defer@ddssets as at the end and as at the beginning of

the reporting periods.

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO COMPONENTS Jan 1-Dec 31 2012 Jan 1-Dec 31
OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2011

Exchange differences on translating foreign 12,121 11135
operations

Valuation of cash flow hedging derivatives 3,114 -1,142
Acf[uarlal gains/(losses) on a defined benefit 305 1,487
retirement plan

Income tax relating to other comprehensive income 592t 781
Other comprehensive income -9,294 9,287

41



. /’/

7

Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
amount amount
ltem carrying | recogni| carrying | recogni
amount | sedin | amount | sedin
profit or profit or
Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation/amortisation 10,0082,127 7,881 1,455
Finance leases 256 50 206 27
Fair value measurement of available-for-sale finernc
assets (1,156)
Other 163 8 157 (41)
Foreign exchange gains 56 -515 571 440
Adjustments to long-term contracts 7,515 2,006 5,509 1,360
Valuation of financial assets 248 -1,081 1,329 1,092
Forward transactions 394 392 2
Deferred tax liabilities 18,640 2,986 15,654 3,177
Deferred tax assets
zﬁgzg?]tf%roﬂlj::éhty severance payments and 2517 205 1.812 741
Provision for length-of-service awards and bonuses 369 -9 378 82
Provision for accrued holiday entitlements 580 -9 589 196
Provision for losses on contracts 0 .36 36 36
Provision for warranty repairs 282 -85 367 -458
Provision for other employee benefits 608 608
Other provisions 963 610 353 58
Losses deductible from future taxable income 1021,444 1,546 1
Assets arising under long-term contracts 1,779 522 1,257 281
Foreign exchange losses 152 -238 390 240
Grant settlement 631 631
Other 939 744 195 381
Valuation of financial instruments 1-1,128 1,129 1,129
AR N R R I
Lease liabilities 111 45 66 -30
Impairment losses on inventories 592 119 473 56
Impairment losses on receivables 277 -220 497 132
Impairment of investments 505 232 273
Deferred tax assets 10,565 1,007 9,558 2,860
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Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
: amount . amount
Item camyiNg | o cognised “2MY'"MI | recognised
amount | "cco9n! amount | 09Nt
In equity In equity
Valuation of financial instruments — equity i i 299 299
component
Deferred tax assets - - 222 222
Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Item SIS reirgogigtec ST reatl:rgo:ljigtec
amount | . gni amount | . gni
in equity in equity
Valuation of financial instruments — equity 371 371 i i
component
Deferred tax liabilities 371 371 - -

Note 7. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On October 8th 2010, the Board of Directors of SBESRWICK (Tianjin) Industrial Furnace Co.
Ltd. executed an agreement for sale to the Chisbseeholder Tianjin Kama Electric Thermal
Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd. of a 25% equitierest in SECO/WARWICK (Tianjin) Industrial
Furnace Co. Ltd. held by SECO/WARWICK Corp. for USO0 thousand and a 25% equity interest
held by SECO/WARWICK S.A. also for USD 300 thousatwitially, it was agreed that the
transaction would be finalised by December 31sD26ibwever, this arrangement had not been met
by the Chinese partner. Therefore, a new payméetsite was agreed upon. An annex to the original
agreement was also signed, providing for a potedisolution of SECO/WARWICK (Tianjin)
Industrial Furnace Co. Ltd. if payments are not enaals scheduled. The President of
SECO/WARWICK (Tianjin) Industrial Furnace Co. comigd the first stage of the transaction
concerning change of the company's hame.

As the Parent expects to encounter difficultiesatiecting the cash owed, in keeping with the
principle of prudence in accounting, an impairmess was recognised on the cash received so far
from the Chinese owner of KAMA Eletric Thermal Egoient Manufacturing Co.

The shares in SECO/WARWICK Tianjin were accountadiri the statement of financial position
as assets held for sale of PLN 722 thousand.

Held-for-sale assets are presented by the Groapsaparate item of assets.

Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Opening balance 4,164 889
Plant and equipment 2,986 3,377
Impairment loss 224
Financial assets 722 1281
Impairment loss 32 495
Assets held for sale 3,708 4,164

As at December 31st 2012, the value of machiney equipment carried by the Group as
property, plant and equipment held for sale was RL986 thousand. As the Management Board
expects the assets to be sold in the financial 3848, they were recognised as assets held for sale
to ensure compliance with IFRS 5.
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Note 8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by divithiegnet profit for a given period attributable to
holders of ordinary shares by the weighted averageber of outstanding ordinary shares in that
period.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by digidhe net profit for a given period attributalde t
holders of ordinary shares (net of interest on eetble preference shares convertible into
ordinary shares) by the weighted average numbeutdtanding ordinary shares in that period
(adjusted for the effect of dilutive options andutive redeemable preference shares convertible
into ordinary shares).

ltem Dec 31 2012 | Dec 31 2011
Net profit on continuing operations attributablest@mreholders 28,1710 15,093
Loss on discontinued operations attributable toedi@ders 0
Net profit attributable to owners of the parent 128, 15,093

Interest on redeemable preference shares coneeirtiiol
ordinary shares

Net profit attributable to holders of ordinary shares used to

calculate diluted earnings per share 28,170 15,093
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinaryeshased tg

calculate basic earnings per share 10,47¢,21010,476,21(
Earnings per share 2,69 1.44
Dilutive effect:

Number of potential subscription warrants for 2@00-1 500,000 10,250
Number of potential shares issued at market price ,289 9,037
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shasesd to

calculate diluted earnings per share 10,972192110,477,423
Diluted earnings per share 2.57 1.44

Material events subsequent to the balance-sheethdat been reported in current reports, which
can be found akww.secowarwick.com

Note 9. DIVIDENDS PROPOSED OR APPROVED BY THE DATE OF APPROVAL OF
THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On May 28th 2012, the Annual General Meeting of SBEARWICK S.A. adopted Resolution
No. 20 concerning distribution of profit for therpe from January 1st to December 31st 2011.
The entire net profit earned by SECO/WARWICK S.ASwiebodzin in the financial year 2011,
that is PLN 4,169,370.80 (four million, one hundi@ad sixty-nine thousand, three hundred and
seventy zfoty, 80/100), was transferred to stayuteserve funds.

Note 10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Iltem Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
tangible assets 48,533 51,427
tangible assets under construction 1,235 1,552

prepayments for tangible assets under construgction

Property, plant and equipment 49,769 52,979
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OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE - net value Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011

Owned 49,161 51,918
Used under lease, tenancy or similar contract 608 1,061
Total 49,769 52,979
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Changes in property, plant and equipment (by typ#)e period January 1st—December 31st 2011

ltem Land Buildings and Mach|_nery and _ Other | Total
structures equipment | Vehicles

Gross carrying amountas atJan 1, 359 27,298 33272 5,678 2,939| 71,548

2011 1 1 L L 1 L

Increase, including: 267 6,168 1184 161| 7,780

assets acquired 63 3,805 1,035 161| 5,064

assets generated internally 204 2.363 2.567

lease agreements concluded 149 149

other

Decrease, including: 4,394 240 77| 4,711

disposal 80 240 37| 357

liquidation 937 40| 977

loss of control

reclassification — assets for sale 3,377 3,377

Gross carrying amount as at Dec 3

2011 2,361 27,565 35,046) 6,622| 3,023| 74,617

Cumulative amortisation as at Jan

12011 4,733 12,085 2,740| 1,428|20,987

Increase, including: 1,000 3,321 881 257| 5,459

amortisation 1,000 3,321 881| 257| 5,459

revaluation

tangible assets of acquired companjes

other

Decrease, including: 505 195 50/ 750

sale 57 195| 20| 272

liquidation 448 30 478

loss of control

revaluation

Cumulative amortisation as at Dec

312011 5,733 14,901 3,426| 1,635| 25,696

Impairment losses as at Jan 1 2011 487 487

Impairment losses as at Dec 31

2011

Net exchange differences on

translating financial statements into

presentation currency 94 988 1,283 139 1] 2,506

Net carrying amount as at Dec 31

2011 2,455 22,819 21,428  3,335| 1,389| 51,427
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Changes in property, plant and equipment (by typ#)e period Jan 1-Dec 31 2012

ltem Land Buildings and Mach|_nery and _ Other | Total

structures equipment | Vehicles

Gross carrying amount as at Jan 1
2012 2,361 27,565 35,046) 6,622| 3,023| 74,617
Increase, including: 1,494 2,018 1962 537| 6,011
assets acquired 884 1,782 846| 408| 3,920
assets generated internally 610 610
lease agreements concluded 666 666
other 236 451| 128 815
Decrease, including: 668 1,428 1,151 115| 3,361
disposal 6 606| 1,132 54| 1,798
liquidation 662 8§22 19 61| 1,564
loss of control
reclassification — assets for sale
Gross carrying amount as at Dec 3
2012 2,361 28,390 35,636) 7,434 3,445| 77,266
Cumulative depreciation as at Jan
12012 5,733 14,901 3,426 1,635| 25,696
Increase, including: 1,154 3,337|  893| 257| 5,641
depreciation 1,154 3,337 893| 257| 5,641
revaluation
tangible assets of acquired companjes
other
Decrease, including: 483 985 643 82| 2,193
sale 374 624| 42| 1,040
liquidation 483 611 19 40| 1,153
loss of control
revaluation
Cumulative depreciation as at Dec
312012 6,405 17,253 3,676| 1,810]29,144
Impairment losses as at Jan 1 2012
Impairment losses as at Dec 31
2012
Net exchange differences on
translating financial statements into
presentation currency 35 181 161 76 -42 411
Net carrying amount as at Dec 31
2012 2,396 22,166 18,544 3,834 1,594 48,533
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No impairment losses on tangible assets were resedgjin 2011 and 2012.

Tangible assets under construction:

Tangible |Expenditure —— Accounting for the expenditure
assets undef incurred in pL:len:?sgeSs . Dec 31
construction the >¢S | Machinery -
asatJan1| financial | andcivi and | Vehicles| Other Intaalggélé)sle 2011
2011 year englneerlng equipment
structures
[3,178 8,644 243 3,096 915| 147 5,869 1,552
Tangible | Expenditure — Accounting for the expenditure
assets undef incurred in pL:len:?sgeSs . Dec 31
construction the >¢S | Machinery -
asatJdan1| financial | andcwil and | Vehicles| Other| IMtangible 12012
engineerin ' assets
2012 year g 9 equipment
structures
: [1,552 4,863 1,246 2,376 1,205 85 267 1,235
Tangible assets under construction Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Testing station for hydrogen atmosphere 336 336
VDRFCfurnace 239 -
Reconstruction of office 335 -
VPT furnace - 640
Modernisation work at production facility 28 76
Other 287 500
TOTAL 1235 1,552
Value and area of land held in perpetual usufruct a at Dec 31 2011 (excluding foreign
companies)
NUILEEL @ Surface area
Land and Value as at
Address Mortgage Lot No. [sqrg]lazsozit1 Dec Dec 31 2011
Register Entry
ul. Sobieskiego &wiebodzin, Poland KW 1306 95/7 5,008 289
ul. Sobieskiego 8wiebodzin, Poland KW 9562 94/4 2,467 140
ul. Sobieskiego 8wiebodzin, Poland KW 9444 94/16 285 97
ul. Sobieskiego 8wiebodzin, Poland KW 9507 94/23 1119 6 originally
lot No. 94/17
KW 9444 | 94/22 1,415 o 9444
ul. Sobieskiego 8wiebodzin, Poland KW 9507 94/21 2,645 150
ul. Sobieskiego 8wiebodzin, Poland KW 19319 94/19 214 12
ul. Sobieskiego &wiebodzin, Poland KW 9507 94/8 110 6
ul. Sobieskiego &wiebodzin, Poland KW 39300 94/25 1,279 73
ul. Swierczewskiego 76wiebodzin, Poland KW 40641 195/80 11,605 23
ul. Swierczewskiego 76wiebodzin, Poland KW 41410 195/94 221 1
ul. Sobieskiego &wiebodzin, Poland KW 9507 94/6 1,1p1 10
ul. Swierczewskiego 76wiebodzin, Polangd KW No. 10363 | 195/97 28,366 594
ul. Swierczewskiego 7&wiebodzin, Polang KW No. 10363 | 195/96 7,940 166
Total 62,885 1,567
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On December 21st 2010, SECO/WARWICK S.A. signedSDI\2,500 thousand investment loan
agreement with BRE Bank Spétka Akcyjna. The fagilitas taken to finance 10% of the purchase
cost of five shares in Retech Systems LLC.

The borrowing is secured with a blanket ordinaryrtigege of USD 2,500 thousand and a blanket
ceiling mortgage of up to USD 250 thousand creatast a property owned by the State Treasury
and comprising the following lots:

* Nos. 94/21, 94/8, 94/23, 94/6, with total area 8995ha, situated at ul. Sobieskiego 8,

Swiebodzin

* Nos. 94/16, 94/22, with total area of 0.1700hapatéd at ul. Sobieskiego 8,

Swiebodzin

« No. 94/19, with area of 0.0214ha, situated at abiskiego 8Swiebodzin

« No. 94/4, with area of 0.2467ha, situated at ubi€skiego 8Swiebodzin

« No. 94/7, with area of 0.5098ha, situated at uhi€skiego 8Swiebodzin

« No. 94/25, with area of 0.1279ha, situated at abiskiego 8Swiebodzin

« No. 195/80, with area of 1.1605ha, situated a$wierczewskiego 76Swiebodzin

« No. 195/94, with area of 0.0221ha, situated a$wierczewskiego 76Swiebodzin

» as well as buildings and structures situated omatimve lots, owned by the borrower,
and on undeveloped lot No. 94/14, owned by thedveer, with an area of 0.1030ha,

situated at ul. Sobieskiegoﬁ'B/,viebodzin.

In 2012, the lots originally marked with numberg@8€4/21 and 94/23 were combined to become
lot No 951. Then lot No. 951 with an area of 0.28&4was divided into two lots: No. 951/1 with
an area of 0.0712 ha and No. 951/2 with an ar€24d62 ha.

Value and area of land held in perpetual usufruct a at Dec 31 2012

Number of Land Surface area
and Mortgage [sg m] as at | Value as at Ded
Address Register Entry Lot No. Dec 31 2012 31 2012

ul. Sobieskiego 8&wiebodzin,
Poland KW 9507 951/1 712 40
ul. Sobieskiego 8&wiebodzin,
Poland KW 9507 951/2 2,162 123
ul. Sobieskiego 8&wiebodzin,
Poland KW 1306 95/7 5,098 289
ul. Sobieskiego 8&wiebodzin,
Poland KW 9562 94/4 2,447 140
ul. Sobieskiego 8&wiebodzin,
Poland KW 9444 94/16 285 16
ul. Sobieskiego 8&wiebodzin,
Poland KW 9444 94/22 1,415 80
ul. Sobieskiego 8&wiebodzin,
Poland KW 19319 94/19 214 12
ul. Sobieskiego 8wiebodzin,
Poland KW 39300 94/25 1,279 73
ul. Swierczewskiego 76,
Swiebodzin, Poland KW 40641 195/80 11,405 23
ul. Swierczewskiego 76,
Swiebodzin, Poland KW 41410 195/94 2P1 1
ul. Sobieskiego 8wiebodzin,
Poland KW 9507 94/6 1,141 10
ul. Swierczewskiego 76, KW No. 10363 195/97 28,366 594
Swiebodzin, Poland
ul. Swierczewskiego 76, KW No. 10363 195/96 7,940 166
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Swiebodzin, Poland

Tangible assets under lease agreements

Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Tangible assets Gross . Net | Gross . Net
Depreciation Depreciation
value value | value value

Real property
Plant and equipment 693 242 451
Vehicles 1,163 216 947 913 370| 543
Other tangible assets 0
Total 1,163 216 947| 1,606 612 994

The carrying amount of vehicles which were usedtadecember 31st 2012 under finance leases
and lease agreements with a purchase option isFBNhousand (December 31st 2011: PLN 543

thousand).
Note 11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE — net value Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Owned 14,575 14,091
Used under lease, tenancy or similar contract
Total 14,575 14,091

Changes in intangible assets (by type) in the pedalanuary 1st—-December 31st 2011

Patents and Development . Oth?r
Item , intangible Total
licences, software expense
assets
Gross carrying amount as 5331 8.691 3.453 17,475

atJan 1 2011

Increase, including: 697 595 1,292
business combinations

acquisitions 697 595 1,292
other

Decrease, including:

disposal of subsidiary 6 6

disposal

liquidation

revaluation

other

Gross carrying amount as
at Dec 31 2011 6,022 9,286 3,453 18,761

Cumulative amortisation
as at Jan 1 2011 2,844 268 682 3,794

Increase, including: 765 87 175 1,027
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87

175

1,027

revaluation

other

Decrease, including:

liquidation

sale

other

Cumulative amortisation
as at Dec 31 2011

3,603

355

857

4,815

Impairment losses as at
Jan 12011

Increase, including:

Decrease, including:

Impairment losses as at
Dec 31 2011

Net exchange differences
translating financial
statements into presentatiq
currency

n

145

145

Net carrying amount as at

Dec 31 2011

2,563

8,931

2,596

14,091

Changes in intangible assets (by type) in the pedalanuary 1st-December 31st 2012

Item

Patents and

licences, software

Development
expense

Other
intangible
assets

Total

Gross carrying amount as
atJan 12012

6,022,

9,286,

3,458,

18,761,

Increase, including:

576

2,847

656

4,079

business combinations

acquisitions

576

266

848

values in the construction

2,265

2,265

other

576

576

intangible assets of acquir
companies

390

390

Decrease, including:

96

96

disposal of subsidiary

disposal

liquidation

96

96

revaluation

other

Gross carrying amount as
at Dec 31 2012

6,502

12,133

4,109

20,857

Cumulative amortisation

3,603,

355,

857,

4,815,
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as at Jan 1 2012

Increase, including:

865

573

166 1,605

amortisation

865

573

166 1,605

revaluation

other

Decrease, including:

79

79

liquidation

79

79

sale

other

Cumulative amortisation
as at Dec 31 2012

4,390

928

1,023 6,342

Impairment losses as at
Jan 12012

Increase, including:

Decrease, including:

Impairment losses as at
Dec 31 2012

Net exchange differences pn
translating financial
statements into presentation
currency

60

60

Net carrying amount as at
Dec 31 2012

2,171

11,205

3,086 16,462

Intangible assets are not pledged as securitydbilities.

As at December 31st 2012 and December 31st 204 Grbup carried no intangible assets held for

sale.

In 2011 and 2012, no impairment losses were resegni

Note 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

SECO/WARWICK S.A. owns an investment property lechat ul. Sobieskiego 8 Bwiebodzin,
Poland, which comprises a production hall curretehsed out to VACMAX. In 2012 and 2011,

the property generated lease income of PLN 54 #hulis

Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Opening balance 422 435
Increase (subsequent expenditure), including: - -
modernisation - -
Decrease, including: 13 13
Depreciation 13 13
Sale - -
Closing balance 409 422
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Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Gross carrying amount — opening balance 527 527
Increase, including: - -
Acquisitions - -
Decrease, including: - -
Disposals - -
Carrying amount — closing balance 527 527
Cumulative depreciation — opening balance 105 92
Increase, including: 13 13
Depreciation 13 13
Decrease, including: - -
Sale - -
Cumulative depreciation — closing balance 118 105
Impairment losses — opening balance - -
Increase - -
Decrease - -
Impairment losses — closing balance - -
Net carrying amount — closing balance 409 422
ltem Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Lease income 54 54
Cost of generating lease income 23 23
Real property tax 10 10
Depreciation 13 13

Note 13. GOODWILL

The table below presents increases/decreases wigbon full consolidation of subsidiaries
SECO/WARWICK Corporation, Retech Systems LLC an€OBNVARWICK Service GmbH.

Item Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2011
Consolidation goodwill at beginning of period 65,116 58,000
Increase in consolidation goodwill — acquisition of
SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH 1,667
Exchange differences on translation of goodwill -,6,063 7,116
Total goodwill at end of period 60,720 65,116

Accounting for acquisition

On December 4th 2012, SECO/WARWICK Service GmbKsefmany became a company of the

SECO/WARWICK Group. SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH is amirect subsidiary owned
through SECO/WARWICK GmbH, which holds a 100% eguititerest in SECO/WARWICK

Service GmbH.
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The fair value of identifiable assets and liakektiof SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH of

Germany as at the date of acquiring control wdslaswvs:

Carrying amount | Fair value at the
Item prior to time of
acquisition acquisition
Property, plant and equipment 719 719
Intangible assets 394 394
Accruals and deferred income 0
Deferred tax assets 0
Cash and cash equivalents 0
Trade receivables 1,403 1,403
Inventories 1,431 1,431
Other assets 83 83
Trade payables 563 563
Other liabilities 191 191
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 2,236 2,236
Deferred tax liabilities 244 244
Net asset value 797 797
Goodwill related to accounting for the acquisitivas determined in the following manner:
Item Nov 30 2012

Acquisition price 2,464
Share of net assets as at acquisition date 797
Goodwill as at acquisition date 1,667

Goodwill includes unidentifiable intangible assetish as know-how, technologies and credentials.
In the opinion of the Management Board, the asaetsso unique that their potential valuation
would be to a large extent discretionary and, cgmsetly, would involve a risk of error (absence
of an active market for the assets). For this neasavas decided that the intangible assets would

not be measured and would be included in goodwill.
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Note 14. INVESTMENTS IN RELATED ENTITIES

Investments in subsidiary, jointly-controlled and euity-accounted associated entities

Company Carryingtagwe%ugi %foslgares as Owners(r;/ior; interest t"c/; :If JQ; cg/rlwighl%i ':i):; ) Assetd] Liabilities | Revenue NetI gsrgfit/
SECO/WARWICK EUROPE 7,65[ 100% 100% full 70,086| 35213 75,925 5,015
SECO/WARWICK Corporation 21,806 100% 100% full 73,943|  63,496| 98,390 3,261
SECO/WARWICK Moscow 172 100% 100% full 2,022 1,732| 25,360 -274
RETECH Systems LLC 50,863 100% 100% full 84,633| 41,905 186,424 13,485
SECO/WARWICK ALLIED 12,921 50% 50%|  equity method 5353 32,297 61,331 2,245
SECO/WARWICK Retech 3,370 100% 100% full 12 056 6616] 16579 190
OO0 SCT Russia 643 50% 50% full 1317 97 021 0 -0,5
SECO/WARWICK GmbH 0 100% 100% full 3,412 3862 3461 -826
SECO/WARWICK Service Gmbh 0 100% 100% full 4423 3601 672 30
SECO/WARWICK ThermAL 7,657 100% 100% full method 72,487 42,933 84,261 7,305
SECO/WARWICK Corporatiof 21,806 100% 100% full 43,412| 35665 54,517 330
SECO/WARWICK Moscow 172 100% 100% full 2,966 2,391 2,286 -341
RETECH Systems LLC 50,843 100% 100% full 65,100 32,272 122,849 4,272
SECO/WARWICK ALLIED 10,995 50% 50%| equity method | 64,607 46,951 59,418 2,238
SECO/WARWICK Retech 2,578 100% 100% full 8,875 3,995 6,350 -115
SECO/WARWICK GmbH 849 51% 51% full 1,414 1,041 0 -600
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Note 15. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED ASSOCIATES
SECO/WARWICK Allied Pvt., Ltd.

The Group holds 50% of ordinary shares in SECO/WARMVAIlied Pvt. Ltd., representing 50%
of the total vote at the General Meeting of SECORVACK Allied Pvt. Ltd., an Indian law
company. The remaining 50% of votes are held byskéed. Rao, N. Rajgopal, and V.N. Nasta.

The shares in SECO/WARWICK Allied Pvt. Ltd. weregated by the SECO/WARWICK Group
under the share purchase agreement of April 12.200

Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Current assets 35,758 45,653
Non-current assets 17,776 18,953
Current liabilities 28,394 32,765
Non-current liabilities 3,903 14,186
Share of net assets 11,305 9,672
Revenue 61,331 60,331
Net profit/(loss) 2,245 2,391
Share of profit of associate: 50% 50%

The Parent does not control SECO/WARWICK Allied .Pvtd. within the meaning of IFRS 3
because it is not able to govern the company'sifiiah and operational policies. Messrs. Jeffrey
Boswell, Wojciech Modrzyk (Member of the Parent'sardgement Board) and Piotr Walasek
(Chief Financial Officer of the SECO/WARWICK Grouggrve on the six-member Board of
Directors of SECO/WARWICK Allied Pvt. Ltd. and d@tperform any current operational duties
towards SECO/WARWICK Allied Pvt. Ltd. Given the alep and considering the fact that
SECO/WARWICK holds more than 20% and less than 81 @¥dinary shares and a corresponding
interest in the net assets of the acquired compthmyManagement Board of the Parent believes
that SECO/WARWICK has “significant influence” ovére acquiree. In view of the above, the
investment in SECO/WARWICK Allied Pvt. Ltd. has Imeaccounted for using the equity method
in accordance with IAS 28:

Item Apr 1 2008

Purchase price 10,995
Share of net assets as at acquisition date 4,111
Goodwill as at acquisition date 6,884

ltem Dec 31 2012 | Dec 31 2011
Goodwill 7,692 7,692
Share of net assets as at the balance-sheet date 11,305 9,672
Exchange differences on translation of goodwill 81 1,098
Investment in associate 19,077 18,462
Purchase price 10,995 10,995
Share of profit of associate - 2008 411 411
Share of profit of associate - 2009 225 225
Share of profit of associate - 2010 1,319 1,319
Share of profit of associate - 2011 1,140 1,140
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Share of profit of associate - 2012 1,122

Payment for preference shares 4,419 2,493
Exchange differences on translation of foreign apen -554 1,880
Investment in associate 19,077, 18,462

As prescribed by IAS 12.44, the Group recogniseferdesd tax assets related to deductible
temporary differences arising from investments seo&iates only to the extent it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the feesble future.

The Management Board of the Parent intends to thaldnvestment in SECO/WARWICK Allied
Pvt. Ltd. as a long-term investment (currently ¢hare no plans to sell the shares). In view of that
and in accordance with I1AS 12.44, no deferred tagets were recognised in respect of the

deductible temporary differences arising from ing@nts in associates.

Note 16. INVENTORIES

Iltem Dec 31 2017 Dec 31 2011
Materials (at cost) 20,511 18,185
Semi-finished products and work in progress 6,089 6,490
Finished products 1,061 1,179
Merchandise 688 180
Total inventories (carrying amount) 28,349 26,034
Impairment losses on inventories 2,096 1,737
Inventories, gross 30,445 27,771
CHANGES IN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON INVENTORIES

Semi-
finished
: products | Finished :
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES Materials and work | products Merchandisg Total
in
progress
Jan 1 2011 1,427 161 50 5| 1,643
Increase, including: 134 134
- impairment losses recognised in correspondence
with other operating expenses
Net exchange differences on translating financial
> . 134 134
statements into presentation currency
Decrease, including: 4 37 41
- impairment losses reversed in correspondence
. A 4 37 41
with other operating income
Net exchange differences on translating financial
statements into presentation currency
Dec 31 2011 1,558 161 13 5( 1,737
Increase, including: 901 901
- impairment losses recognised in correspondence
: . 901 901

with other operating expenses
Net exchange differences on translating financigl
statements into presentation currency
Decrease, including: 191 351 542
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- impairment losses reversed in correspondenc

@D

. e 104 346 450

with other operating income
Net exchange differences on translating financigl 87 5 92
statements into presentation currency
Dec 31 2012 1,367 711 13 5| 2,096
Note 17. LONG-TERM CONTRACTS

Item Dec 31 2017 Dec 31 2011
Co_sts incurred unde_r construction contracts, inoydecognised 591,343 481,248
gains (net of recognised losses)
Prepayments received -561,252 (463,123)
Excess of received prepayments over revenue reseguising the 53.271 38,601
percentage of completion method
Contract settlement, total 83,362 56,816
Note 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Trade receivables (net) 73,356 107,077
Long-term 1,121 0
- from related entities 0 0
- from other entities 1,121 0
Short-term 72,235 107,077
- from related entities 562 1,094
- from other entities 71,673 105,983
Impairment losses (positive value) 2,101 2,561
Trade receivables (gross) 75,457 109,638
Other receivables:
Long-term 992 0
Short-term 16,763 11,642
- taxes, customs duties, social security 4595 3,139
other 12,168 8,503
Other receivables (gross) 17,755 11,642

The Group operates a policy of selling its produatal services only to customers whose
credibility has been verified. Management belietres thanks to this policy there is no additional
credit risk beyond the level determined by the impant losses recognised with respect to the
Company’s uncollectible trade receivables.

As at December 31st 2012, trade receivables of PlIN1 thousand (2011: PLN 2,561 thousand)
were classified as unrecoverable and, accordiaglglevant impairment loss was recognised.

The changes in impairment losses on receivables asfollows:
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Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
As at beginning of the period 2,561 1,900
Increase 215 1,210
Use (-) -205 (129)
Unused amounts written off (-) -360 (551)
Net exchange differences on translating finandatkesnents into 110 131
presentation currency
As at end of the period 2,101 2,561
Maturity structure of trade receivables (grossiras the balance-sheet date:
Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
up to 1 month 30,096 14,087
more than 1 month, up to 6 months 33,018 87,018
more than 6 months, up to 1 year 5,212 1,534
more than 1 year 2,360 575
past due 2,670 3,863
Total trade receivables (gross) 73,356 107,077
long-term receivables 1,121 0
short-term receivables 72,235 107,077
Impairment losses on trade receivables 2101 2,561
Total trade receivables (net) 75,457 109,638
Trade and other receivables by currency:
Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Item i i i i
[ eI restated in PLN | " )T restated in PLN
currency currency
PLN 17,221 - 14,050
EUR 5,253 21,475 12,476 53,630
uUsD 15,542 49,559 16,119 51,019
GBP 1 6 63 332
CHF
other 5,586 3,560
Total 93,846 122,591
Current receivables from related entities:
Iltem Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Trade receivables 562 1,094
From subsidiaries
From jointly controlled entities
From associates 562 1,094
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consolidated financial statements

From other related entities not covered by these

Other current receivables

437

From subsidiaries

From jointly controlled entities

From associates

437

consolidated financial statements

From other related entities not covered by these

Total

999

1,094

Note 19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Loans advanced (including loans advanced to members the Management Board) — as at

December 31st 2012

Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Increase in loans advanced, including: 21 0
- non-current 13
- current 8 0

No loans were advanced to members of the ManageBuamt! or the Supervisory Board in 2011.

Financial assets

Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Derivative financial instruments 4,028 10
Financial assets at fair value through profit or Iss 4,028 10
- non-current
- current 4,028 10
Financial liabilities
Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Bank borrowings 20,720 28,123
Other financial liabilities: 1,134
- valuation of financial instruments 5 7,106
- lease liabilities ,,b81 349
- other financial liabilities 548
Total financial liabilities 21,854 35,578
- non-current 3,367 6,948
- current 18,487 28,630
Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 4,028 5 10 7,106
\'I/';)ltl?éftlﬂs)nuc;l srs;?{t(s)ralggsllablhnes at fair 4,028 5 10 7106
- non-current
- current 4,028 5 7,106
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Total financial assets and liabilities at fair

value through equity 1,580 942
- non-current
- current 1,580 942

Disclosures concerning derivative financial instrunents which meet the hedge accounting
criteria

In 2012, SECO/WARWICK S.A. used currency forwardsl &zero-cost collars established by
writing a put option and buying a call option tadge an average of 60% of its EUR-denominated
cash flows generated from export sales and up % 6bits USD-, GBP- and CZK-denominated
cash flows. The purpose is to hedge the budgeteltbege rates for contracts. Any changes in the
value of the EUR- or USD-denominated cash flowsdadfeet by changes in the fair value of the
hedging instrument. Hedge accounting is appliealithe criteria provided for in IAS 39:88 are
met. Any negative balance-sheet valuation of déxgainstruments is recognised directly in
equity. If a transaction which has been hedged witurrency forward affects profit or loss, any
negative valuation previously recognised in eqistyeclassified to profit or loss. Fair value of
currency forward contracts was determined by thkehich is party to the transaction.

SECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A. uses currency forwards aetb-cost collars established by
writing a put option and buying a call option tadge an average of 60% of its EUR-denominated
cash flows generated from export sales and up % 6bits USD- and GBP-denominated cash
flows. The purpose is to hedge the budgeted ex&heatgs for contracts. Any changes in the value
of the EUR- or USD-denominated cash flows are dtigechanges in the fair value of the hedging
instrument. Hedge accounting is applied if all tneeria provided for in IAS 39:88 are met. Any
negative balance-sheet valuation of derivativerumsénts is recognised directly in equity. If a
transaction which has been hedged with a curreapyalrd affects profit or loss, any negative
valuation previously recognised in equity is resifisd to profit or loss. Fair value of currency
forward contracts was determined by the bank wisigiarty to the transaction.
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The table below presents total values of hedgiag

sdctions open as at December 31st 2012.

Amount
recognised Amount
Original notional | Remaining notional | Fair value of | in profit |recognised
Notional amount amount of amount of hedging the or loss | in equity
Dec 31 of contract hedging instrument as at instrument (PLN (PLN Date for final settlement of
2012 (EUR'000) instrument Dec 31 2012 (PLN '000) ‘000) ‘000) hedging instrument
TOTAL 28,252 16,966 14,866 1,720 1,174 546| From Jan 31 2013 to Aug 29 2014
Amount
recognised Amount
Original notional | Remaining notional | Fair value of | in profit [recognised
Notional amount amount of amount of hedging the or loss | inequity
Dec 31 of contract hedging instrument as at instrument (PLN (PLN Date for final settlement of
2012 (USD'000) instrument Dec 31 2012 (PLN '000) ‘000) ‘000) hedging instrument
TOTAL 19,409 11,188 8,263 2,147 785 1,362| From Feb 26 2013 to Mar 14 20[L3
Amount
recognisedd Amount
Original notional | Remaining notional | Fair value of | in profit |recognised
Notional amount amount of amount of hedging the or loss | in equity
Dec 31 of contract hedging instrument as at instrument (PLN (PLN Date for final settlement of
2012 (CZK'000) instrument Dec 31 2012 (PLN '000) ‘000) ‘000) hedging instrument
TOTAL 37 500 24 225 16 150 87 71 16| From Mar 29 2013 to Apr 30 2013
Amount
recognised Amount
Original notional | Remaining notional | Fair value of | in profit [recognised
Notional amount amount of amount of hedging the or loss | inequity
Dec 31 of contract hedging instrument as at instrument (PLN (PLN Date for final settlement of
2012 (GBP'000) instrument Dec 31 2012 (PLN '000) ‘000) ‘000) hedging instrument
TOTAL 692 400 400 70 42 27 Jun 28 2013
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Note 20. PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME
Item Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2011
insurance policies 909 816
subscriptions 1 5
VAT to be settled in the following period 577 790
rent software 116
other 1,237 560
Total current prepayments and accrued income 2,840 2,171
Note 21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ltem Dec 31 Dec 31
2012 2011
Cash at banks and cash in hand 55,556 20,249
Short-term deposits
Other cash equivalents 36
Total cash and cash equivalents 55,556 20,285
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (BY CURRENCY):
Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Item in foreign | restated in| in foreign | restated in
currency PLN currency PLN

PLN 18,033 183

EUR 1,247 5,096 464 2,050

uUsD 9,531 29,543 4,970 16,983

GBP 189 947 24 127

other 1,938 942

Total 55,556 20,285

Note 22. SHARE CAPITAL AND STATUTORY RESERVE FUNDS/CAPITAL RESERVES

Share capital

Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Number of shares 10,476,21( 10,476,210
Par value of shares 0.2 0.2
Share capital 2,095 2,095
Share capital restated using hyperinflation index
(AS 19) P g nyp 1,557 1,557
Share capital at end of the period 3,652 3,652
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Share capital structure:

Type of Type of

preference | limitation | Number of
Shareholder attached to | on rights shares

shares to shares
SW Poland Holding B.V. (Netherlan: None - 4,119,50:
Spruce Holding Limited Liability Company (USA) None - 1,726,174
Bleauhard Holdings LL None - 904,20°
ING NN OFE None - 600,00(
OFE Polsat S./ None - 485,97:
AMPLICO None - 577.,47(
Othel None - 2,062,87
TOTAL 10,476,210

Changes in share capital:

- Jan 1-Dec | Jan 1-Dec
312012 312011

Share capital at beginning of the period 3,652 3,652
Share capital increases during the period
Share capital increase
Share capital restated using hyperinflation ind&%(19)
Share capital reductions during the period
Share capital at end of the period 3,652 3,652

Other components of equity

Item

Statutory reserve fund

Other components of
equity

Balance as at Dec 31 2010

172,843

35

Increase

4,819

Profit distributions

4,819

Capital reserve from revaluation of hedging
derivatives

Share capital increase — share premium

Valuation of management stock options

Decrease

35

Loss allocation

Management stock options

Balance as at Dec 31 2011

177 662

Increase

11,475

Profit distributions

11,475

Capital reserve from revaluation of hedging
derivatives

Share capital increase — share premium

Valuation of management stock options

Decrease

Loss allocation

Management stock options

Balance as at Dec 31 2012

189,136
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Note 23. RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)

Retained earnings (deficit) do not include nontibstable amounts (amounts that are not available
for distribution as dividends):

Iltem Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Non distributable amounts included in retained earmngs 56,701 50,226
Current net profit (loss) 28,170 15,093
Exchange differences 168 11,814
Capital associated with the valuation of hedgingtiacts 1,580 -942
Capital associated with the valuation of the plan 2,644 -2,949
Capital retained (undistributed result, consolidatdjustments, etg.) 29,428 27,210

Note 24. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

ltem Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011

Bank borrowings 20,720 28,123
Other financial liabilities: 1,134

- finance lease liabilities 5 349
- valuation of financial instruments 581 7,106
- other financial liabilities 548

Total financial liabilities 21,854 35,578
- non-current 3,367 5,681
- current 18,487 29,897

Bank borrowings and other debt instruments:

Item A|ri21 %“R;Of Nominal interest rate Company
BANK BORROWINGS

Dec 31 2011
Bank Handlowy 1,195 USD 1M LIBOR + 1.6% SECO/WARWICK S.A.
BZ WBK 3,903 PLN 1M WIBOR +1.1 % SECO/WARWICK S.A.
BRE BANK 1,462 PLN WIBOR O/N + 1.5 9 SECO/WARWICK S.A.
BRE BANK S.A.
é'gﬁgﬁ‘ %?/fstmem 6,835 1M LIBOR + 1.55 % SECO/WARWICK S.A.
loan
BZ WBK 4,762 1M WIBOR +1.1%| SECO/WARWICK ThermAL S.A.
BRE BANK 4,967, WIBOR O/N + 1.59%4 SECO/WARWICK ThermAL S.A.
James Golz 3,532 3.25% Retech Systems LLC
Citibank 1,025 3.25%| SECO/WARWICK Corporation
Minority shareholdef 442 5% SECO/WARWICK GmbH
o x x

Dec 31 2012
Bank Handlowy 1,54‘{1 6.08%| SECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A.
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BRE BANK 3,007 6.16% SECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A.
James Golz 1,62(1 3.25% Retech Systems LLC
HSBC 7,594 3.25% Retech Systems LLC
Citi Bank 464 7.31% SECO/WARWICK Retech
Sparkasse Kleve 205 10.37% SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH
Volksbank Kleverland 409 9.03% SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH
Volksbank Kleverland 409 5.45% SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH
Sparkasse Emmerichy 409 8.75%| SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH
Sparkasse Kleve 205 4.35% SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH
Martin van Rossum 10pR 10% SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH
Heiner Kelputt 102 10% SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH
BRE BANK S.A. 4,649 LIBOR 1M + 1.55% SECO/WARWICK S.A.
B : :
Borrowings by maturity:

ltem Dec 31 2012 | Dec 31 2011
Current bank borrowings and other debt instruments 17,620 22,555
Non-current bank borrowings and other debt instnisie 3,100 5,568
- repayable in more than 1 year, up to 3 years 3,10 3,859
- repayable in more than 3 years, up to 5 years 1,709
Total bank borrowings and other debt instruments 20,720 28,123
Non-current and current bank and other borrowings as at December 31st 2012

Name ar;cfi |;el'?clisetfr8d office (?Dulf;tanjmg(;: j:;nucr;t Renayment date Security
Current
Declaration on submission to
Bank Handlowy 1,544 Aug 29 2013 gf‘gggfgg‘o‘fgg\‘j;# D tthOrOPuLg’\r']
August 31st 2015
Declaration on submission to
war2o 2014 ISTEN T o P
August 31st 2017

James Golz 1,621 USD 500 Jan 31 2013  Shareholder's guarantee
HSBC 7,594 USD 2,450 - Guarantee
Citi Bank 464, RMB 933 Nov 13 2013 Guarantee
Sparkasse Kleve 205 EURSO0 - -
Volksbank Kleverland 409 EUR 100 - -
Volksbank Kleverland 409 EUR 100 Oct 30 20171 -
Sparkasse Emmerich-Rees 409EUR 100 Mar 30 2013 -
Sparkasse Kleve 205 EURSO0 Aug 20 2013 -
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Martin van Rossum 102 EUR 25 - -

Heiner Kelputt 102 EUR 25 - -
Non-current

Ordinary mortgage for
UsD 2,500,000
Security mortgage for
USD 250,000
Submission to enforcement for
up to USD 2,750,000

BRE BANK S.A. Zielona

Gobra Branch 4,649| USD 1,500 Dec 31 2015

* Carrying amount of the borrowing is PLN 3,417 wisand, with the balance representing interest adcru

Non-current and current bank and other borrowings a at December 31st 2011

Name and registered office Outstanding amount

Repayment date Securit
of lender PLN | Currency = y
Current

L Submission to enforcement for

I
Bank Handlowy 1,195 350 May 4 2012 up to USD 360 thousand

4 Submission to enforcement for
BZ WBK 3,903 Oct 31 2012 up to PLN 16,000 thousand
BRE BANK 1,462 Mar 28 2014 Blank promissory note
Aug 31 2012 power of attorney, promissory

BZ WBK 4,762 note, mortgage
BRE BANK 4,967 Mar 28 2014 mortgage, promissory note
James Golz 3,532* 1,000 Jan 31 2018Shareholder's guarantee
Citibank 1,025 300 -| guarantee

Non-current

Ordinary mortgage for USD

BRE BANK S.A. Zielona g:’eSi(IJig’OPnoort age for USD

Gora Branch, investment 6,835 2,000 Dec 31 2015 250 080 939

loan Submission to for up to USD
2,750,000

Minority shareholder (S/W
GmbH)

* Carrying amount of the borrowing is PLN 3,417 wisand, with the balance representing interest adcru

442 100

Shareholder's guarantee

Bank borrowings and other debt instruments by cueye

Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011

Value in Value in :
Item foreign Value in PLN foreign V?Dltle\lm

currency currency
PLN 4,552 15,094
EUR 50 205 100 442
uUsD 4,450 13,864 3,650 12,587
RMB 933 464

Total bank borrowings and
other debt instruments Aty X AENE
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Note 25. LEASES

Operating lease

Liabilities under operating leases — the Group lessee:

Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Lease payments made 255 64
Outstanding balance:
Up to 1 year 167 45
From 1 year to 5 years 340 48
Over 5 years
Total 507 93

In 2012 and 2011, operating lease agreements imcladse of office equipment used by

SECO/WARWICK Corporation.

On July 31th 2012, SECO/WARWICK S.A. concluded witblkswagen Leasing Sp. z 0.0. lease
agreement No. 6044242-1212-07457 for the leaseasdgnger car Audi A6. The initial value, as
per the lease agreement, was PLN 363 thousandadreement expiry date is June 30th 2014. As
at the end of 2012, the lease liability amounteBLdl 181 thousand.

Finance leases

As at December 31st 2012 and December 31st 20dMilities under finance leases and lease
agreements with a purchase option were as follows:

Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Minimum izl Minimum Present
ltem lease value of lease value of
the lease the lease
payments payments

payments payments
Up to 1 year 280 211 258 236
From 1 year to 5 years 440 366 119 113
Over 5 years
Total minimum lease payments 720 577 377 349
Finance costs 143 X 28 X
Present value of minimum lease payments,
including: 577 577 349 349
current 211 211 236 236
non-current 366 366 113 113
Finance lease agreements as at December 31st 2012

Liabilities
Initial Agreement | outstanding as at
Lessor Agreement No. i Currency expiry date [
reporting period

BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0O/105666/2010 69 PLN|  pec 16 2014 1
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BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0107533/2010 104 PLN| FEB 21 2013 7
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0/112021/2010 54 PLN Jul 30 2013 9
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0112022/2010 63 PLN Sep 20 2013 13
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0/112023/2010 58 PLN Jul 30 2013 10
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0O/120581/2011 50 PLN| Apr27 2014 25
Millenium K150078
Leasing 88 PLN Nov 05 2014 48
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/PO/ 138167/2012 108 PLN Jun 30 2014 99
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/PO/ 142435/2012 59 PLN Oct 30 2015 67
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/PO/ 142436/2012 59 PLN Oct 30 2015 67
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/PO/ 145013/2012 57 PLN Oct 30 2015 55
Volkswagen
Leasing Sp. z | 6044242-1212-07457 363 PLN Jul 30 2014 181
0.0.
Total X 1,162 X X 582
Finance lease agreements as at December 31st 2011
Liabilities
Initial Agreement | outstanding as at
Lessor Agreement No. Currency gre 9
value expiry date the end of
reporting period

BZ WBK
Leasing Z2D2/00002/2009 47 PLN Jan 20 2012 2
BZ WBK
Leasing Z2D2/00001/2009 42 PLN Jan 20 2012 2
Volkswagen
Leasing 4810073-1209-02185 64 PLN| Apri112012 8
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/PO/105666/2010 59 PLN| Dec 162012 24
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0107533/2010 104 PLN Feb 21 2011 40
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0/112021/2010 54 PLN Jul 30 2013 27
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0112022/2010 63 PLN| Aug 202013 32
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/P0/112023/2010 58 PLN Jul 30 2013 28
IKB Leasing
Polska 1003402 343 PLN| Aug 112011 68
BRE Leasing | ELTERMA/PO/ 120581/2011 50 PLN| Apr27 2014 43
Millenium
Leasing K150078 88 PLN Nov 5 2014 70
BRE Leasing | PO/77517/2009 140 PLN Jan 13 2012 5
Total X 1,132 X X 349
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Note 26. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
current liabilities 44,674 34,166
non-current liabilities 26
Total 44,700 34,166
TRADE AND OTHER CURRENT PAYABLES
Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Trade payables
To related entities - 98
To other entities 32,459 26,255
Total 32,459 26,353
Taxes, customs duties, social security and othenge's
payable 1,550 1,806
Salaries and wages payable 1,757 3,317
Income Tax liabilities 5,431
Other liabilities 3,477 2.690
Total other liabilities 12,215 7,813
Total trade payables and other liabilities 44,674 34,166
Current liabilities by currency:
Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
i LSOl restated in PLN 1 U restated in PLN
currency currency

PLN , 16,203 14,722

EUR 1,155 4,722 1,452 6,487

USD 5,919 18,349 3,495 11,944

GBP 51 257 1 4

SEK 2 1

other 5,142 1,007
Total 44,674 34,166
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Trade payables by delinquency period:
Past due but recoverable
Item Total | Not past due
< 30 daysg 30—60 dayy 60—90 dayg 90-180 dayy >180 days
Dec 31 2011 | 26,353 26,353
Dec 31 2012 | 32,459 32,459
Other current liabilities by delinquency period:
ltem Total Not past due Past due but recoverable
< 30 dayg 30—60 dayy 60—90 dayg 90-180 dayy >180 days
Dec 31 2011 | 7,813 7,813
Dec 31 2012 | 12,215 12,215
Non-current liabilities
Item Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
To related entities 26 442
To other entities
TOTAL 26 442
Loan advanced to SECO/WARWICK GmbH by minority stesider.
Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities under guarantees and swsetie
IN
Surety in FOREIGN | AMOUNT
Dec 31 2012 Bank respect of [ Currency | CURRENCY/| (PLN '000)* | Company
Guarantee 1 BRE PBG EUR 184 753
Guarantee 2 BH SBLC USD 500 1,550
Guarantee 3 BH SBLC USD 506 1,568
Guarantee 4 BRE PBG EUR 80 327 4
Guarantee 5 BRE PBG PLN 45 45 Q
Guarantee 6 BRE PBG EUR 58 236 ;%
Guarantee 7 BRE PBG USD 70 215 g
Guarantee 8 BRE PBG EUR 12 49 o)
=
Guarantee 9 BRE PBG RUB 37,500 3,814 ”
Guarantee 10 BRE PBG RUB 1,050 107 >
Guarantee 11 HSBC APG EUR 150 612
Guarantee 12 HSBC SBLC USD 1,100 3,410
Guarantee 13 BRE bid bond UsD 34 106
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Guarantee 14 BRE APG EUR 105 429
Guarantee 15 BH APG PLN 948 948
Guarantee 16 BRE PBG RUB 6,960 708
Guarantee 17 BH APG GBP 208 1,042
Guarantee 18 BH APG GBP 69 344
Guarantee 19 BRE PBG RUB 1,100 112
Guarantee 20 BH PBG EUR 54 223
Guarantee 21 BRE APG EUR 525 2,146
Guarantee 22 BRE PBG RUB 2,500 254
Guarantee 23 HSBC APG EUR 600 2,453
Guarantee 24 HSBC APG EUR 450 1,839
Guarantee 25 BRE PBG EUR 50 204 @
Guarantee 26 BRE PBG PLN 180 180 8
Guarantee 27 BRE APG EUR 396 1,619 S
Guarantee 28 BRE APG EUR 759 3,103 g
Guarantee 29 BRE PBG EUR 178 728 Q
Guarantee 30 BRE PBG PLN 25 25 m
Guarantee 31 BRE APG usD 446 1,384 g
Guarantee 32 BH APG PLN 873 873 D
Guarantee 33 EAST WEST BANK PBG usD 114 352
Guarantee 34 | EAST WEST BANK APG USD 2,153 6,674
Guarantee 35 EAST WEST BANHK PBG uUsD 1,421 4,403 g
Guarantee 36 | EAST WEST BANK PBG USD 34 105 S
Guarantee 37 EAST WEST BANK PBG UsD 34 105
Guarantee 38 EAST WEST BANK PBG UsD 1,586 4,917
Guarantee 39 HSBC BANK PBG CNY 600 299
Guarantee 40 HSBC BANK PBG CNY 196 97 %)
s
Guarantee 41 HSBC BANK PBG CNY 1,483 738 T
Guarantee 42 HSBC BANK PBG CNY 365 182
TOTAL 49,278

* The guarantees were translated at the mid-ex@heatgs quoted by the National Bank of Poland

for December 31st 2012.

72




HEAT TREATMENT EQUIPMENT

IN
Surety in FOREIGN [ AMOUNT
Dec 31 2011 Bank respect of | Currency | CURRENCY [ (PLN)** Company
Guarantee 1 BRE PBG PLN 37 37
Guarantee 2 BRE PBG EUR 184 813
Guarantee 3 BRE PBG EUR 174 766
Guarantee 4 BRE PGB EUR 137 605
Guarantee 5 BH SBLC UusbD 1,000 3,417
Guarantee 6 BRE PGB EUR 80 353
Guarantee 7 BH SBLC usbD 500 1,709 rUr)l
Guarantee 8 BRE PBG EUR 58 254 S
Guarantee 9 BH APG EUR 513 2,266 §
Guarantee 10 BRE PBG EUR 12 53 g
Guarantee 11 BRE APG PLN 665 665 o
Guarantee 1?2 BRE APG EUR 207 914 ;
Guarantee 13 BRE PBG USD 70 238 >
Guarantee 14 BH SBLC usD 506 1,729
Guarantee 15 BRE PGB EUR 12 53
Guarantee 16 BRE APG PLN 1,808 1,808
Payment
Guarantee 1Y BRE guarantee EUR 47 208
Guarantee 18 BRE APG EUR 90 398 wn
k
Guarantee 19 BZ WBK APG PLN 429 429 | 4 8
Guarantee 20 BZ WBK APG EUR 112 495 a <
Guarantee 21 BZ WBK APG EUR 500 2208 |3 %
P
Guarantee 2? BRE APG usD 281 960 %
Guarantee 28 BZ WBK APG EUR 112 495 A
EAST WEST
Guarantee 24 BANK PBG UsD 2,156 7,369
EAST WEST
Guarantee 25 BANK PBG UusbD 3,234 11,053 Py
EAST WEST =
Guarantee 26 BANK PBG usD 4,312 14,737 S
EAST WEST @
Guarantee 2Y BANK PBG UsD 5,390 18,421 %
EAST WEST 3
Guarantee 28 BANK PBG UsD 34 116 ®
EAST WEST
Guarantee 29 BANK PBG UsD 34 116
TOTAL 72,686

** The guarantees were translated at the mid-exgharates quoted by the National Bank of
Poland for December 31st 2011.
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APG - advance payment guarantee
BB - bid bond guarantee

CRG - facility repayment guarantee
PBG - performance bond

SBLC~ stand-by letter of credit
WAD=-> bid bond

CRB - facility repayment bond

SURETIES ADVANCED BY SECO/WARWICK S.A.

Dec 31 | AMOUNT

Company Bank Surety in respect of Currency 2012 (PLN)
S/W ALLIED Pvt. Ltd.| Union Bank of Indig Guarantee and credit facility INR 225,000/ 12,753
RETECH Systems East West Bank Credit guarantee U$D1,000 3,100

RETECH Systems HSBC BANK USAGuarantee and credit facility USD 25,000*| 77,490

RETECH Systems HSBC BANK USAGuarantee and credit facility USD 3,500* 10,849

S/W Corp. HSBC BANK USA Guarantee and credit faciliiy USD 1,800 5,579
S/W EUROPE S.A. Bank Handlowy| Guarantee and cfadility PLN 6,000 6,000
TOTAL 115,771

* As at December 31st 2012, Retech Systems used2J&D thousand of available credit lines

On April 6th 2011, the Management Board of the Camypadopted a resolution to increase the
value of surety granted for SECO/WARWICK Allied Piztd. (India) from INR 147,500 thousand
to INR 225,000 thousand. The total value of theesyrtranslated at the INR/PLN mid-exchange
rate quoted by the National Bank of Poland fordhte of the resolution, is PLN 14,233 thousand.

On December 31st 2010, James A. Goltz advancecetecR Systems LLC a loan of USD 1,000
thousand. Repayment of the loan is guaranteed WQCAWARWICK S.A. At present, the
principal outstanding under the loan is USD 50Qugamnd.

On July 6th 2012, the SECO/WARWICK Management Bganalvided a surety for the liabilities
of RETECH SYSTEMS LLC of the U.S. (a wholly-ownedbsidiary of SECO/WARWICK S.A.).
The surety is to secure repayment of credit faedlitwhich are to be granted to RETECH
SYSTEMS LLC by HSBC BANK USA, N.A. The surety wasogided for up to USD 3,500,000
(three million, five hundred thousand US dollardarp to USD 25,000,000 (twenty five million
US dollar) and secures repayment of the principabunt with interest, commission fees, charges
and costs under the credit facility agreement aghriod from the agreement date to June 30th
2015.

On June 19th 2012 the Company’'s Management Boavgdted a resolution to issue a surety for
liabilities of SECO/WARWICK Corp. (USA). The surety to secure credit facilities granted to
SECO/WARWICK Corp. by HSBC BANK USA, N.A. The suyetvas provided for up to USD
1,800,000 (one million, eight hundred thousand Wiads) and covers the repayment of principal
with interest, commission fees, charges and caulgnithe credit facility agreement in the period
from the agreement date to June 30th 2015.

On December 31st 2012, the Company executed aySAgreement with Bank Handlowy w
Warszawie S.A. The surety provided by the CompamySECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A,, in
the amount of PLN 6,000 thousand, serves as sgdaritepayment of the bank's claims under an
overdraft facility of PLN 5,000 thousand extendeg the Bank under an Overdraft Facility
Agreement. The surety expires on June 30th 2014.
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Social assets and liabilities of the Company SociBenefits Fund (Polish companies)

The Act on Company Social Benefits Fund of March 4894 (as amended) stipulates that an
employer should set up a Company Social BenefitadFifi it has more than 20 full-time
employees. The Company has set up such a Fund akesrperiodic contributions to the Fund in
the amount of the basic contribution / contributimreed upon with the trade unions. Additionally,
the Fund holds property, plant and equipment. Tiredks used to subsidise the Company’s social
activity, loans advanced to the employees and atharl expenses.

The Group set off the Fund’s assets against itdlitias towards the Fund, as the Fund’s assets do

not represent a separate asset category.

The table below presents analytic data on the FRuasets, liabilities and expenses, as well as the

net balance of the Fund.

ltem Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Total tangible assets contributed to the Fund
Loans advanced to employees 153 134
Cash 72 415
Liabilities to the Fund 48 91
Net balance 132 410
Contributions to the Fund during financial period 74% 576

Investment commitments

As at December 31st 2012, the Group has an outstandmmitment to invest PLN 334 thousand
in property, plant and equipment (2011: PLN 13lusamd). These amounts will be used to

purchase new machinery and equipment.

Note 27. PROVISIONS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement benefits and other post-employment beni$

Retiring employees of the Polish companies of theu@ received retirement bonuses in amounts
established pursuant to the Polish Labour Codereftre, based on a valuation prepared by a

qualified actuary, the Group recognises a provismnthe present value of the retirement bonus
obligations. The amount of the provision and red@tmn of changes in the provision during the

year are presented in the table below.

Provision for retirement bonuses and similar benets

NON-CURRENT PROVISION FOR Jan 1- Jan 1-
RETIREMENT BONUSES AND BENEFITS Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
as at beginning of the period 317 238
increase 2,713 189
- provisions of acquired entities
- provision recognised 2,713 189
use
release -165 -110
as at end of the period 2,865 317
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Main assumptions adopted by the actuary as atalamde-sheet date to calculate the amount of the
obligations were as follows:

ltem Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Discount rate (%) 4.2 5.8
Expected inflation rate (%) 2.5 2.5
Expected rate of growth of salaries and wages (%) .0 5 5.0

CHANGE IN CURRENT PROVISION FOR Jan 1— Jan 1-Dec 31
RETIREMENT AND SIMILAR BENEFITS Dec 31 2012 2011
(BY CATEGORY)
1. Provision for accrued holiday entitlements
a) as at beginning of the period 1,710 784
b) increase 1,507 1,717
- provisions of acquired entities
- provision recognised 1,507 1,717
C) use 289
d) release 1,710 502
e) translation differences
f) as at end of the period 1,507 1,710
2. Provision for bonuses
a) as at beginning of the period 3,419 1,919
b) increase 5,620 4,146
- provisions of acquired entities
- provision recognised 5,620 4,146
C) use 2,583 1,618
d) release 1,967 1,173
e) translation differences
f) as at end of the period 4,489 3,274
3. Provision for retirement bonuses
a) as at beginning of the period 104 869
b) increase 445 104
- provisions of acquired entities
- provision recognised 445 104
C) use 3 8
d) release 96 862
e) translation differences
f) as at end of the period 450 104
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (SECO/WARWICK CORP.)

Item 2012 2011
Change in plan liability
Obligation at beginning of period 104 12,033
Service cost 159 0
Interest expense 612
Actuarial gain/(loss) 159 1,572
Contributions paid 3 -707
Obligation at end of period 96 13,509
Change in plan assets 164
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 4(10 8,865
Actual return on plan assets 159 51
Contributions paid in 820
Contributions paid out 159 -707
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 3 8,926
96
Net value of plan liability in balance sheet
Liability at end of period 164 13,509
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 104 8,926
Liability at end of period 159 -4,579
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) 6,657
Unrecognised past service cost 159 75
3
Costs recognised in profit or loss 96
Service cost 0
Interest expense 164 531
Expected return on plan assets 104 588
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 159 481
Recognised past service costs 27
Costs recognised in profit or loss 159 451
wartos¢ rezerwy w pozycji ,;ezerwy dtugoterminowe” 3,544 4,579

77



. /’/

7

OTHER PROVISIONS
Provision
el Fieiger Other roeitgif)rns -
Item warranty for . provi Total
. provisions| contingent
repairs and| penalty liabilit
returns y
As at Dec 31 2010 3,183 250 968 4,401
Acquisition of subsidiary
Provisions recognised during financial 456 3,498 3,954
Provisions used -71 -170 -241
Provisions released -1,462 -2,161 -3,623
Exchange differences
Discount rate adjustment
As at Dec 31 2011 2,106 250 2,135 4,491
Acquisition of subsidiary
Provisions recognised during financial 305 7.352 7.657
Provisions used -312 -312
Provisions released -363 -250 -5,654 -6,267
Exchange differences
Discount rate adjustment
As at Dec 31 2012 2,048 0 3,521 5,569
Note 28. DEFERRED INCOME
Item Dec 31 2012| Dec 31 2011

- grant for partial financing of tangible assets
- grant from the Polish Ministry of Science and kg
Education 4,515 4,552
- long-term contracts 67,443 54,608
- other 26
Total deferred income, including: 71,985 59,160
non-current 4515 4,552
current 67,469 54,608

Note 29. EXPLANATORY INFORMATION TO THE STATEMENT O F CASH FLOWS

Item Dec 31 2012| Dec 31 2011
Cash in the balance-sheet 55,557 20,285
exchange differences on balance-sheet valuation 29 -46

monetary assets classified as cash equivalentedqurposes of

the statement of cash flows
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Total cash and cash equivalents disclosed in theatggment of 55 586 20,239
cash flows

Item Dec 31 2012| Dec 31 2011
Depreciation and amortisation 7,290 6,273
amortisation of intangible assets 1,626 4,593
depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5/651 1,667
depreciation of investment property 13 13
exchange differences
Change in provisions (excluding elimination of incme tax 5012 2551
liabilities) results from the following items: ' '
balance-sheet change in provisions 6,542 3,507
value as at the date of acquisition of RETECH SY®BE -2,419
exchange differences 889 -956
Change in inventories results from the following iems: -1,067 -3,819
balance-sheet change in inventories -892 -4,866
exchange differences -815 1,046
Chapge in receivables (excluding _ellmlnatlc?n of irmme tax 24,307 39,568
receivable) results from the following items:
balance-sheet change in current receivables 30,648 -46,195
discontinued operations -676
exchange differences -5,665 6,627
Change in current liabilities (excluding financialliabilities
and elimination of income tax liabilities) resultsfrom the 6,953 739
following items:
balance-sheet change in current liabilities -882 3,262
adjustment for change i_n liabilities related towisdion of 147
property, plant and equipment
elimination of change in lease liabilities -187 50
change in investment liabilities -461
exchange differences -10,366 -5,550
bank borrowings 14,708 9,380
valuation of derivative instruments 4,141 -7,040
liability towards SECO/WARWICK Allied 490
Change in prepayments and accrued income (excluding
elimination of income tax assets) results from théllowing -12,830 35,653
items:
balance-sheet change in accruals and deferrals -15,277 38,768
exclude changes in deferred tax assets Income 887
exchange differences 1,559 -3,116

79



Note 30. RELATED PARTIES
Sales Purchases Receivables | Liabilities
Related party Year to related from from towards
parties related parties| related parties| related parties

SECO/WARWICK EUROPE

2012 7,559 6,624 916 3,216

2011 7,177 2,507 5,859 1,045
SECO/WARWICK Corporation

2012 438 2,276 117 3,331

2011 2,207 1,283 2,377 -
SECO/WARWICK GmbH

2012 107 2,516 46 524

2011 - - 442 -
SECO/WARWICK Moscow

2012 965 19,838 85 40

2011 1,824 - 173 -
RETECH

2012 1,445 7,783 3,780 1,611

2011 409 23 1,292 157
SECO/WARWICK RETECH

2012 421 1,234 400 4,607

2011 353 - 922 -
SECO/WARWICK Allied

2012 - 30 - 562

2011 1,053 - 1,080 -
SECO/WARWICK Service GmbH

2012 - - - -

2011 - - - -
000 SCT

2012 - - - -

2011 - - - -

Other related parties

Employment contract between SECO/WARWICK S.A. tidZawistowski

Under the contract of February 1st 2007, Piotr Ze&awwski was obliged to provide work to the

Company as a junior maintenance engineer. The adnivas first concluded for a probationary
period of three months. On March 1st 2007, theigmarsigned an annex to the contract,
transforming it into an employment contract foriadefinite term. The contract contains standard
provisions, which comply with the Polish Labour @odn May 5th 2008, Piotr Zawistowski

assumed the position of Chief Manager of the MgltlFurnaces Maintenance Division, on
February 1st 2010 he was appointed Deputy HeadefMacuum Division in charge of LPC

technology and on May 4th 2010 - Head of the VO@idbon. Piotr Zawistowski is a close family

member, as defined in IAS 24, of Andrze] Zawistowskember of the Management Board of
SECO/WARWICK S.A.

Employment contract between SECO/WARWICK S.A. aadZBwistowska

Under the contract of January 2nd 2006, Ewa Zawssia was obliged to provide work to the
Company as a human resources management specidiist.contract was concluded for an
indefinite term. On April 1st 2009, Ewa Zawistowskssumed the position of Management Board
Office Administrator. The contract contains stawndarovisions, which comply with the Polish
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Labour Code. Ewa Zawistowska is a close family memlas defined in IAS 24, of Andrzej
Zawistowski, member of the Management Board of SBTARWICK S.A.

Employment contract between SECO/WARWICK S.A. atatZyna Zawistowska

Under the contract of November 3rd 2008, KatarZaaistowska was obliged to provide work to
the Company as a full-time Planning Clerk. The msttwas first concluded for a probationary
period of three months. The next contract was cated for a definite term. The contract contains
standard provisions, which comply with the Polisabbur Code. Since February 2nd 2009,
Katarzyna Zawistowska has been employed as CletkénSpare Parts Department. Katarzyna
Zawistowska is a close family member, as defineth® 24, of Andrzej Zawistowski, member of
the Management Board of SECO/WARWICK S.A.

Employment contract between SECO/WARWICK S.A. and Klinowska

Under the contract of January 3rd 2005, Anna Kliskavwas obliged to provide work to the

Company as a full-time Management Board Assistdihe contract was first concluded for a

probationary period. The next contract was conaufie a definite term. The contract contains

standard provisions, which comply with the Polisabbur Code. Since June 1st 2007, Anna
Klinowska has been employed as a Human ResourceBayroll Specialist. Anna Klinowska is a

close family member, as defined in IAS 24, of Witdlinowski, member of the Management

Board of SECO/WARWICK S.A.

Other related parties 2012 2011
Short-term employee benefits (salaries, wages aacheads) 358 317

Note 31. KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION

Senior management of the SECO\WARWICK GROUP coreprimembers of the Management
and Supervisory Boards.

The table below presents total remuneration paidagable to members of the Management and
Supervisory Boards:

T Dec 31 Dec 31
2012 2011

Management Board of the Parent 3,581 2,166
Short-term employee benefits (salaries, wages aartheads) 3,581 2,166
Supervisory Board of the Parent 352 138
Short-term employee benefits (salaries, wages aactheads) 222 138
Fee under agreement for advisory services 130

Management Boards of subsidiaries 4,859 3,714
Short-term employee benefits (salaries, wages aartheads) 4,859 3,714
Supervisory Board of subsidiaries 46 42
Short-term employee benefits (salaries, wages aactheads) 46 42
Total 8,838 6,060

MANAGEMENT BOARD remuneration:

Name Total remuneration
Dec 31 2012 Dec 31 2011
Management Board of SECO/WARWICK S.A.

Pawet Wyrzykowski 1,578
Leszek Przybysz 828
Andrzej Zawistowski 80 300
Witold Klinowski 755 536
Jozef Olejnik 483 413
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Wojciech Modrzyk 685 519

Total 3,581 2,166
Management Board of SECO/WARWICK ThermAL S.A.

Jarostaw Talerzak 623 360
Bartosz Klinowski 415 240
Joanna Zyguta 312 75
Ryszard Rej 60
Total 1,350 735

Management Board of SECO/WARWICK Reteth

Stawomir Waniak 75 62
Qiu Mao 290 102
Richard Li 99 39
Total 464 655

Management Board of RETECH

James Golz 1,099 699

Total 1,099 699
Management Board of SECO/WARWICK Corporation

Jeffrey W. Boswell 385 404
Arthur V. Russo 514 387
Louis Stack 288 281
Keith Boeckenhauer 759 553
Total 1,946 1,625

SUPERVISORY BOARD remuneration:
Name Total remuneration
Dec 31 2012 |Dec 31 2011
Supervisory Board of SECO/WARWICK S.A.

Andrzej Zawistowski 206 -
- for his work as Chairman of the Supervisory Bbar 76 N
- under agreement for advisory services 130* N

Jeffrey Boswell - -

James A.Goltz - -

Zbigniew Rogé 4 -
Dr Gutmann Habig - -
Piotr Kowalewski 33 30
Piotr Kula 21 24
Henryk Pilarski 47 36

Artur Rusiecki 10 24
Mariusz Czaplicki 31 24

Total 352 138

Supervisory Board of SECO/WARWICK ThermAL S.A.
Henryk Pilarski 46 42
Total 46 42

* Under a service agreement between SECO/WARWICK &w. Mr Andrzej Zawistowski, who conducts
business activities under the name USLUGI DORADQ@kitrzej Zawistowski. The agreement of July 2nd
2012 is for the provision of technical and prodidetelopment advisory services.

Members of the Supervisory Board of SECO/WARWICK r@@wation, Retech Systems and
SECO/WARWICK Retech and the other members of theeBusory Board of SECO/WARWICK
EUROPE S.A. do not receive remuneration.
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Note 32. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Carrying amount Fair value Maximum
ltem Category Dec 31 credit rlsk_
(IAS 39) Dec 312012 | Dec 31 2011 | Dec 31 2012 exposure in
Financial assets
Financial assetp
Investments in related entities classified as
held for sale 19,077 18,462 19,077 18,462 19,077
Financial assetp
Financial assets available for sale (non-current) classified as
held for sale K 3 3 3 3
Loans and
Loans advanced (current) receivables 8 8 8
Loans and
Loans advanced (non-current) receivables 18 13 13
Trade and other receivables Loa'f‘s and
receivables 90,753 119,778 90,753 119,778 90,753
Financial
o — liabilities at fair
Derivative financial instruments
value through
profit or loss 4,028 10 4,028 10 4,028
Financial
- Currency forwards liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss 4,028 10 4,028 10 4,028
. Loans and
Cash and cash equivalents receivables 55,556 20,285 55,556 20,285 55,556
Guarantees 115,771 84,771 115,771 84,771 115,771
Financial liabilities
current
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and other deltunsents, Olt_h(;.;rl_ﬁ_nanmal
including: 1a |!t|es at
amortised cost
- overdraft facility Other financial 16,07p 17,314 16,070 17,314
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liabilities at
amortised cost]

- current loans

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

1,550

5,241

1,550

5,241

- Finance lease liabilities (current)

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

314

236

314

236

Trade payables and other liabilities

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

44,674

37,698

44,674

37,698

- currency forwards

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss

7,106

7,106

non-current

- non-current loans bearing interest at variabléaa

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

3,100

5,568

3,100

5,568

Other liabilities (non-current), including:

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

267

113

267

113

- finance lease liabilities (hon-current)

Other
financial
liabilities at

amortised codt

267

113

267

113
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The table presents the fair value hierarchy rafigcthe significance of the inputs used in making
fair value measurements.
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Financial assets and liabilities at fair Dec 31 2012
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets at X
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets available for sale -
Financial liabilities at X
fair value through profit or loss
Hedging instruments — assets X
Hedging instruments — liabilities X
Financial assets and liabilities at fair Dec 31 2011
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets at X
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets available for sale -
Financial liabilities at X
fair value through profit or loss
Hedging instruments — assets X
Hedging instruments — liabilities X

For the purpose of measurement of derivative firrdrinstruments the Group uses information
provided by banks without reviewing their respeetwaluation models in detail. Therefore, the
Group decided to classify the measurement of digvevinstruments as Level 3 measurement.

Note 33. WORKFORCE STRUCTURE

ltem* Dec 31 Dec 31
2012 2011
Blue-collar employees 360 309
White-collar employees 434 428
Employees on parental leaves 2 2
Total 796 739

*employees of subsidiaries

Note 34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective behind the Group’s capitahagement is to maintain good credit rating and
safe capital ratios, in order to support the Grewggerations and enhance its shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and madifiéen response to changes in the economic
environment. To maintain or adjust its capital stnee, the Company may make changes regarding
dividend distributions, return capital to the slnamieers or issue new shares. During the year ended
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December 31st 2012, there were no changes regatwrgapital structure management objectives,
policies and processes.

In monitoring its capital, the Group uses the lagerratio calculated as net debt divided by total
equity plus net debt. The Group’s net debt inclutsrest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade
payables and other liabilities, less cash and oeghivalents. Equity includes convertible
preference shares and equity attributable to edudtglers of the parent, less capital reserve from
unrealised net gains.

Note 35. TEST FOR IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL
Tests for impairment of shares

The Company carried out tests for impairment of rehaheld in subsidiary entities of
SECO/WARWICK Corporation and Retech Systems LLC.iMpairment loss was recognised as a
result of the tests. The recoverable amounts ataiite to individual cash-generating units were
determined based on their calculated value in use.

Cash-generating unit

In each case the value in use was calculated basethsh flow projections derived from the
financial budgets covering a period of five yeaffie projections reflect the management's
business experience and an analysis of third-paftymation. The table below presents the key
assumptions concerning the discount rate and tivaaded growth rate after the period of detailed
projections:

2012
No. ltem

1. Projection period 5 years
Discount rate:

2. | SECO/WARWICK Corp. 18.8%
Retech Systems LLC 8.3%
Growth rate after the
budget period:

3. SECO/WARWICK Corp. 2%
Retech Systems LLC 1%

Other important assumptions for the calculation ofthe value in use are as follows:

Estimates of the value in use of a cash-generatimgare sensitive to changes of the following
variables:

« free cash flows;
« discount rates;
» market share in the projection period.

Free cash flows are estimated based on historatal @bncerning individual cash-generating units
and forecast operating profit, depreciation and résation, capital expenditure, changes in non-
cash current assets and non-financial liabilities.

Discount rate reflects the management's assesswiferthe risk inherent in the company’'s
operations. It is used by the management to ashessperating efficiency (performance) and
future investment proposals. The discount rate eeiermined taking into account the risk-free
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interest rate determined for each period coveredhbyprojection as the arithmetic mean of the
following: median of the forecast risk-free intdrestes calculated by stock-exchange analysts and
estimated future risk-free interest rates.

Growth rates after the budget period are estimbatesed on the published findings of industry
research.

Assumptions regarding the market are material tmxauin addition to using industry data to
determine the growth rate — the management assheseshe assets and financial standing of
individual cash-generating units may change overlbdget period relative to their peers. The
management expects the market share to remaire stedit the projection period.

Sensitivity to changes of assumptions

With respect to the estimation of the value in wdeindividual cash-generating units, the
management believes that no reasonably possiblegetaf any of the key assumptions referred to
above could cause the carrying amount of a giveh-ganerating unit to exceed its recoverable
amount. As the carrying amounts are lower tharréspective value in use (recoverable amounts),
no impairment losses were recognised on the shaids

Note 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND P OLICY

In the course of its operating and financing atég, the SECO/WARWICK Group is exposed to
risks arising mainly in connection with the finagdinstruments held by the Company. Those risks
may be broadly defined as market risk, comprisingency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk
and credit risk. The objective behind the Groupimicial risk management is to mitigate any
adverse movements in foreign exchange and inteatss, stabilise cash flows and ensure an
adequate level of liquidity and financial flexiljli The rules of financial risk management within
the Group are determined by the Parent's ManageBeatd. As part of the risk management
process, an expert management accounting systetmekasdeveloped and implemented. The key
risk parameters at the level of operating and fiiran activities are monitored through monthly
reports for the Group companies.

36.1 Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk, arisinganrection with sales, trade receivables, financial

liabilities and bank loans denominated in EUR argDUIn the consolidated financial statements,

the risk of margin on translation of the Group fgneoperations also appears. Entities exposed to
that risk are primarily SECO/WARWICK CorporationcaRetech Systems LLC.

Analysis of the Group’s sensitivity to fluctuatiomsPLN/USD and PLN/EUR exchange rates

Assuming a 10% depreciation of the US dollar adains zioty as at December 31st 2012 (all
other things being equal), both the Group’s nefipfor the financial year 2012 and the Group's
equity would have been lower by PLN -4,250 thousd@od2011, the respective figure would have
been PLN -1,000 thousand). Conversely, assumir@@dppreciation of the US dollar against the
zloty as at December 31st 2012 (all other thingaghequal), both the Group’s net profit for the
financial year 2012 and the Group's equity wouldeheen higher by PLN +4,250 thousand (for
2011, the respective figure would have been PLN66R, thousand).

Assuming a 10% depreciation of the euro againstztby as at December 31st 2012 (all other
things being equal), both the Group’s net profittfee financial year 2012 and the Group's equity
would have been lower by PLN -7,709 thousand (fit12 the respective figure would have been
PLN -1,.390 thousand). Conversely, assuming a 1f8teaiation of the euro against the ztoty as at
December 31st 2012 (all other things being eqbal)) the Group’s net profit for the financial year
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2012 and the Group's equity would have been higgyePLN +7,709 thousand (for 2011, the
respective figure would have been PLN +2,950 thodsa

Assuming a 10% depreciation of the RUB againstztbéy as at December 31st 2012 (all other
things being equal), both the Group’s net profittfe financial year 2012 and the Group's equity
would have been lower by PLN -711. Conversely, ieiisg a 10% appreciation of the euro against
the zioty as at December 31st 2012 (all other #hioging equal), both the Group’s net profit for
the financial year 2012 and the Group's equity @dwdve been higher by PLN +711.

Assumptions adopted for 2012:

» average USD/PLN exchange rate used to translams itd the income statement: 3.2312

» average EUR/PLN exchange rate used to translams itd the income statement: 4.1736

* USD/PLN exchange rate as at the end of the peed to translate items of the statement of
financial position: 3.0996

« EUR/PLN exchange rate as at the end of the peded to translate items of the statement of
financial position: 4.0882

e average RUB/PLN exchange rate used to translates itd the income statement: 0.1043

« RUB/PLN exchange rate as at the end of the persed to translate items of the statement of
financial position: 0.1017

Assumptions adopted for 2011:

» average USD/PLN exchange rate used to translams itd the income statement: 2.9679

» average EUR/PLN exchange rate used to translams itd the income statement: 4.1401

» USD/PLN exchange rate as at the end of the pesed to translate items of the statement of
financial position: 3.4174

* EUR/PLN exchange rate as at the end of the pesed to translate items of the statement of
financial position: 4.4168

The Group recognises that its sales may potentdlgt to a concentration of currency risk. In the
financial year under analysis, 25% of revenue wasetpted in EUR, 64% — in USD, 10% — in
PLN and 2% in RUB.

36.2 Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is natemal. In the financial year 2012, the total
amount of interest on the Group's liabilities unid@nk borrowings was PLN 1,395 thousand.

36.3 Risk related to product prices

The bulk of the Group’s revenue is generated urldeg-term contracts for the supply of
equipment. At the proposal preparation stage, easte of equipment is priced using the current
prices of materials and labour. Fixed costs ancdafamed margin are also taken into account. As
a result, in the opinion of the Parent’'s ManagenBaatrd, the price risk is minimised.

Nevertheless, the achievement of the SECO/WARWIGKuU@'s strategic objectives concerning
product prices may be hindered by competition.dmpetitive pressures intensify, especially in
Asian markets, they may adversely affect the Graafility to meet its planned financial results.
The Parent's Management Board believes that theCB&BRWICK Group is now engaged in
numerous activities to strengthen its market pasiéind increase its competitive edge by offering
high quality services and comprehensive soluti@rsuring that its product mix is flexible,
enhancing its existing and building new competenesing state-of-the-art technologies and
developing new technological solutions.
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36.4 Capital management

The Group’s capital management relies on a sudtlEnBinancial policy, designed to secure
financial resources sufficient to finance the Greupsiness development, while ensuring that its
financing structure and liquidity levels are adeggqudhe Group’s capital is defined as the sum of
equity and net debt.

The Group’s capital management policy takes intmant two key elements:
* operating performance in the context of investnagrt development plans,
» dividend policy and the external debt repaymenedate.

In order to combine these factors, the Group pa&adlg defines its financing structure framework.
The current objectives of the capital managemelitypare as follows:

e current ratio — in the range from 1.5 to 2.5,

e quick ratio — over 1.

The capital management policy adopted by the Gregpires it to maintain financial discipline,
while giving it enough flexibility to support pradible development.

Capital management is also centred around the gbahaintaining a predetermined level of
financial liquidity which allows the Group both tepay its external debt as its falls due and to
finance the expenditures connected with the Grodmisiness risk. That goal is pursued for
instance by maintaining available credit facilitthat may be drawn when the need arises.

3.6.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may déggroblems with meeting its financial liabilities.
Liquidity risk is managed by projecting future cdkiws, analysing the relation of liquid assets to
cash flows, monitoring liquidity ratios based orange-sheet items and ensuring constant access
to various sources of financing at the level ofvidlial Group companies.

The Group also manages its liquidity risk by mamtey available unused credit facilities which
serve as a liquidity reserve securing solvency famahcial flexibility. The Group considers its
bank borrowings as financial instruments that mateptially lead to a concentration of liquidity
risk as the Company enters into cooperation wikcsed financial institutions only (see Note 24).
As at December 31st 2012, current bank borrowirgsesented 25% of total current liabilities
(December 31st 2011: 30%).

The maturity structure of liabilities is presentedNote 27.

3.6.6 Credit risk

The Group operates a policy of selling its produatsl services only to customers whose
credibility has been verified. Management belietred thanks to this policy there is no additional

credit risk beyond the level defined by the impa@nh losses recognised with respect to
uncollectible trade receivables. The Group disdos® past due receivables which would not have
been deemed uncollectible.

The Group defines its exposure to credit risk &stttal amount of outstanding receivables and
monitors the balances owed by each customer oguarebasis. As at December 31st 2012, the
share of receivables from one of the customers iwate range 10%—-15% of total net trade
receivables.

The maturity structure of receivables is preseiniddote 19.
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Note 37. MANAGEMENT STOCK OPTIONS

With a view to providing additional incentives tieet Company’s management staff to continue
work on the development and consolidation of theCOBVARWICK Group, and to further
increase the value of SECO/WARWICK shares, on Math 2012 the Annual General Meeting
approved the key objectives of the 2012-2016 IneentScheme for members of the
SECO/WARWICK Group’s management staff (the "2012t&Mhcentive Scheme").

Key terms of the 2012-2016 Incentive Scheme:

1. The person serving as President of the ManageBmard as at the date of the Resolution
(“President of the Management Board) and the key company employees indicated by the
President of the Management Board in consultatidh the Supervisory Board (jointly with
the President of the Management Board - thégible Persons”) shall be eligible for
participation in the 2012-2016 Incentive Schemethwispect to each Eligible Person other
than the President of the Management Board; eatia, referred to in Par. 2.11 below, shall be
determined along with the indication of the pers@he list of Eligible Persons shall be
prepared by the Supervisory Board in consultatioth wihe President of the Management
Board within three months from the date of the Re&m.

2. The 2012-2016 Incentive Scheme shall includeéoup00,000 (five hundred thousand) of

Company Series E sharéSéries E Shares)). The President of the Management Board shall
be entitled to acquire up to 250,000 (two hundnedl fifty thousand) Series E Shares, and the
other Eligible Persons shall have the right to &equp to the remaining 250,000 (two hundred
and fifty thousand) Series E Shares.

3. Under the 2012-2016 Incentive Scheme, the Higiersons shall be entitled to acquire
Series B subscription warrant$Séries B Warrants”) free of charge. Series B Warrants shall
confer the right to acquire Series E Shares at {ei value of PLN 0.20 (twenty grosz) per
share.

4. One Series B Warrant shall confer the rightdmuire one Series E Share.

5. The 2012-2016 Incentive Scheme shall be implézdeby way of resolutions adopted by
the General Meeting on conditional share capitedgase by up to PLN 100,000 (one hundred
thousand zloty), through an issue of up to 500(fi06 hundred thousand) Series E Shares and
an issue of up to 500,000 (five hundred thousamdieS B Warrants, with full waiver of the
existing shareholders’ pre-emptive rights to ali&eE Shares and Series B Warrants.

6. The 2012-2016 Incentive Scheme is planned terayeriod of four years starting from the
date of its approval by the General Meeting. Theation of the 2012—-2016 Incentive Scheme
may be extended by the Supervisory Board makingvasit changes in the Rules of the
Incentive Scheme.

7. The number of Series B Warrants issued to thggblied Persons shall depend on:
(i) the price of the Company shares on the WarsaekI=xchange WSE"), or

(i) the selling price of shares, whether sold e @r more transactions (including as part of a
tender offer), conferring the rights to at leas¥3@hirty-thee per cent) of the total vote at the
General Meeting, by a shareholder or shareholdetiagajointly under a memorandum of
understanding, agreement, arrangement, or as partyoother relationship in fact or in law,
holding in aggregate, directly or indirectly, Comgahares conferring the right to at least 33%
(thirty-thee per cent) of the total vote at the &ahMeeting (Major Shareholder”; the term
may refer to one or more shareholders acting pintb a third party (other than a Major
Shareholder or a related party of any of the M&bareholders). If the shares are sold by a
Major Shareholder in more than one transactiom the number of Series B Warrants to be
issued to Eligible Persons shall be calculatedherbiasis of the arithmetic mean of the selling
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prices in all the transactions, weighted by the bemnof the Company shares sold in a given
transaction.

8. An Eligible Person shall be entitled to acquieries B Warrants a number of times during
the term of the Incentive Scheme, however, not nr@guently than twice in a calendar year.
The limited frequency with which the right to acguEeries B Warrants may be exercised does
not apply when the exercise of the right by an ikleg Person is based on the sale of the
Company shares by a Major Shareholder.

9. An Eligible Person shall be entitled to acq@ezies B Warrants if:

() the average price of the Company shares fra6tfsix) months immediately preceding the
date of acquiring Series B Warrants by the Eligibégson is at least PLN 35 (thirty-five ztoty)
per share, or

(i) a Major Shareholder decides to sell at lee€@¥%3(thirty-three per cent) of all Company
shares to an entity other than a Major Sharehaldarrelated party of a Major Shareholder, at
a price of at least PLN 35 (thirty-five ztoty) p&nare. An Eligible Person may acquire Series B
Warrants no sooner than 3 (three) months from #e @f notifying the Company of its
intention to acquire Series B Warrants. The Comparall procure that Series B Warrants are
issued to Eligible Persons no later than withinfau) months following the receipt of the
notification. Series B Warrants may be issued thhoan investment firm, acting as a
custodian.

10. The maximum number of Series B Warrants whiely bre acquired by the President of the
Management Board shall be calculated based orottesving formula:

Q = 6.666P- 183.310

provided that:

dla P =< 35PLN =@ =20

dla P = 65 PLN = @ = 250.000
where:

Q shall mean number of Series B Warrants;

P shall mean, as the case may be (i) the average pfithe Company shares in the 6 (six)
months immediately preceding the date of acquiBeges B Warrants by the President of the
Management Board, or (ii) the price of one Compahgre sold in a transaction between a
Major Shareholder and the acquirer.

If the number of Series B Warrants which may beuaed by the President of the
Management Board, determined based on the abowmul@yis not an integer, such number
shall be rounded down to the nearest integer.

Each time the President of the Management Boardcises its right to acquire Series B
Warrants, the number of Series B Warrants to whicls entitled shall be reduced, in
accordance with the above formula, by the numbe3esfes B Warrants previously issued to
the President of the Management Board under the-ZI 6 Incentive Scheme.

11. The maximum number of Series B Warrants whiely tve acquired by an Eligible Person
other than the President of the Management Boaall sk calculated based on the following
formula:

Q = @, X (6.666P- 183.310)
provided that:
dla P < 35PLN =0 =10
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dla P = 65 PLN = @ = a; X 250.000

where:
Q shall mean the number of Series B Warrants;

P shall mean, as the case may be (i) the average pfithe Company shares in the 6 (six)
months immediately preceding the date of acquiBegies B Warrants by the given Eligible
Person, or (ii) the price of one Company share solda transaction between a Major
Shareholder and the acquirer.

a shall mean a ratio determined individually for e&tigible Person, provided that
a; € (0,1) oraz X'ya, =1

If the number of Series B Warrants which may beuaedg by an Eligible Person, determined
based on the above formula, is not an integer, suchber shall be rounded down to the
nearest integer value.

Each time an Eligible Person exercises its righadquire Series B Warrants, the number of
Series B Warrants to which it is entitled shall tegluced, in accordance with the above
formula, by the number of Series B Warrants presipissued to the Eligible Person under the
2012-2016 Incentive Scheme.

12. The number of Series B Warrants acquired byptrticular Eligible Persons shall in no
event be higher than: (i) 250,000 (two hundred fftgl thousand) in the case of Series B
Warrants acquired by the President of the Managemeard; and (ii)a, x 250,000 (two
hundred and fifty thousand) in the case of an BligPerson other than the President of the
Management Board.

13. The Eligible Person who has acquired Series @&ravits under the 2012-2016 Incentive
Scheme shall be entitled to acquire Series E Statresy time, however, no later than by
December 31st 2016.

Note 38. CAPITALISED BORROWING COSTS

In the presented reporting periods, the Group coegalid not capitalise any borrowing costs.

Note 39. REVENUE GENERATED SEASONALLY, CYCLICALLY O R OCCASIONALLY

In the presented reporting periods, there were aternal items of seasonal, cyclical or occasional
revenue at the Group.

Note 40. COURT PROCEEDINGS

There are no proceedings pending before centrialcat government administration bodies, court
proceedings or arbitration proceedings which ctialde a material effect on the financial standing
or profitability (exceeding 10% of equity) of thedsip.

Note 41. TAX SETTLEMENTS

Tax settlements and other regulated areas of gceig. customs or foreign exchange control) are
subject to inspection by competent administratiotharities, which are authorised to impose high
penalties and sanctions. Lack of reference to estblished legal regulation in Poland has
resulted in ambiguity and inconsistency of the maple laws and regulations. Frequent
differences of opinion on the legal interpretatafrtax laws, both between different governmental
authorities and between governmental authorities ampanies, create areas of uncertainty and
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conflicts. Therefore, the tax risk in Poland isnsfigantly higher than is usually the case in
countries with more developed tax systems.
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Tax settlements may be subject to tax inspectiorafperiod of five years from the end of the
calendar year in which the tax payment was madea Assult of such inspections, additional tax
liabilities may be assessed with respect to thes¢dtkements made by the Group.

In the Management Board’'s opinion, as at Decemfiet 3012, there was no need to recognise
provisions for any recognised and measurable &ks.riThe Company pays its tax liabilities when
due.

From January 1st 2004 to March 31st 2010, SECO/WARN EUROPE S.A. and
SECO/WARWICK S.A., the Parent, formed a tax gro&s of January 1st 2012, the two
companies have again been consolidated for taxopasp

Note 42. WASTE ELECTRICAL AND ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT

In the reporting periods presented, the Group oEmbno events that would have to be disclosed in
Note 43.

Note 43. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE-SHEET DATE

On January 3rd 2013, in Current Report No. 01/20&3SECO/WARWICK Management Board
reported of the acquisition of shares in a subgidi@n December 18th 2012, the Extraordinary
General Meeting of SECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A.Svfiebodzin, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of SECO/WARWICK S.A., adopted Resolution No. 1/20b2 share capital increase at
SECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A. through the issue of nesvi€s B ordinary registered shares,
which were offered to SECO/WARWICK S.A. in a priggilacement in exchange for a non-cash
contribution (the "Contribution"). Pursuant to th&esolution, the share capital of
SECO/WARWICK EUROPE S.A. was increased. On Januarg 2013, SECO/WARWICK
EUROPE S.A. submitted to SECO/WARWICK S.A. an iatittn to acquire the New Shares. The
Company accepted the invitation and executed WECG/WARWICK EUROPE S.A. a share
purchase agreement concerning the New Shares. UtiderShare Purchase Agreement,
SECO/WARWICK S.A. acquired the New Shares for altidsue price of PLN 82,218,000 in
exchange for the Contribution.

On January 3rd 2013, in Current Report No. 02/20ti® Management Board of
SECO/WARWICK S.A. reported of the disposal of aganised part of the Company's business to
a subsidiary as a contribution to cover the subpjtli new issue shares.

In Current Report No.04/2013, dated March 22nd 320the Management Board of
SECO/WARWICK S.A. reported that on March 22nd 20th@ Company and shareholders
(hereinafter jointly referred to as the “Selling agéholders”) of Seco/Warwick Allied Private
Limited of Maharashtra, India (“SWAPL”), in whichhé Company holds a 50% interest,
representing 50% of SWAPL's equity and carryingriglkt to 50% of the total vote at the General
Meeting of SWAPL, entered into a conditional agreahon purchase by the Company of [27,339]
SWAPL shares, representing 25% of SWAPL's equity earrying the right to 25% of the total
vote at its General Meeting (the “Sale Shares'® (#hgreement”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the
acquisition of Sale Shares by the Company dependgliiiment — to the Company's satisfaction —
of certain conditions precedent, specified in therént Report. Under the Agreement, the total
selling price for the Sale Shares is 161,000,0@bam rupees (PLN 9,590,609, translated at the
mid-exchange rate quoted by the National Bank d&rftbfor March 22nd 2013) (the “Selling
Price”), and the total Selling Price is to be pai the Company in three instalments, upon
fulfilment of conditions precedent to each payment.

In Current Report No.05/2013, dated March 25th 01the Management Board of
SECO/WARWICK S.A. with registered office wiebodzin, at ul. Sobieskiego 8, (the “Issuer”)
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reported that the conditions precedent were fatfiflor purchase of 9,090 Sale Shares and payment
of the first instalment of the Selling Price of 539,280 Indian rupees (PLN [3,156,996], translated
at the mid-exchange rate quoted by the NationakBdrPoland for March 25th 2013), as defined
in the agreement for purchase of shares in SecoVitlaAllied Private Limited of Maharashtra,
India (“SWAPL"), made between the Company and SWABhareholders. Following the
acquisition of 9,090 Sale Shares, the Companyhwildl 63,765 shares, representing 58.3% of the
SWAPL share capital and carrying the right to 58.80the total vote at the General Meeting of
SWAPL.
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For details on events subsequent to the balanat-gdhte, see current reports available on the
corporate website aww.secowarwick.com

Note 44. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ADJUSTED FOR INFLATIO N

In the presented reporting periods, the Group comgadid not revalue its share capital and other
capitals to account for hyperinflation.

Date: April 26th 2013

Pawel Wyrzykowski Wojciech Modrzyk Jarostaw Taldeza
President of the Management Board Vice-President of the Management Vice-President of the
Board Management Board
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